
1 
 

 

Management Team: 
Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Police Chief 
Greg McFadden, Unit Chief, CAL FIRE/ 
   Butte County Fire/Paradise Fire 
Gina Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 
Marc Mattox, Public Works Director/ 
   Town Engineer 

Town Council: 
Greg Bolin, Mayor 
Jody Jones, Vice Mayor 
Steve “Woody” Culleton, Council Member 
Scott Lotter, Council Member 
John J. Rawlings, Council Member 
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AMENDED AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – September 08, 2015 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to 

participate, please contact the Town Clerk's Department, at 872-6291 x101 or x102 at least 48 

hours in advance of the meeting. Hearing assistance devices for the hearing impaired are 

available from the Town Clerk. 

Town Council Meetings are held at the Paradise Town Hall located at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, 

California.  Members of the public may address the Town Council on any agenda item, including 

closed session. If you wish to address the Town Council on any matter on the Agenda, it is 

requested that you complete a "Request to Address Council" card and give it to the Town Clerk 

prior to the beginning of the Council Meeting.  The Mayor or Presiding Chair will introduce each 

agenda item, and following a report from staff, ask the Clerk to announce each speaker.  Agendas 

and request cards are located outside the entrance door to the Council Chamber. 

All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open session agenda and which are 

distributed to a majority of the Town Council within 72 hours of a Regular Meeting will be available 

for public inspection at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk Department located at 5555 Skyway, 

Room 3, at the time the subject writing or document is distributed to a majority of the subject 

body.  Regular business hours are Monday through Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

Agendas and supporting information is posted on the Town’s website at 

www.townofparadise.com in compliance with California’s open meeting laws.  Click on the 

Agenda and Minutes button. 

1

http://www.townofparadise.com/


2 
 

1.     OPENING 

              a.      Call to Order 

              b.      Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 

              c.      Invocation 

              d.      Roll Call 

              e.      Presentation(s): 

(1) Recognition of the Town Party in the Park Volunteers - A joint 
recognition by the Paradise Chamber of Commerce and "A Stitch 
Above" 

2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS – None. 

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

         One roll call vote will be taken for all items placed on the consent calendar. 

3a. Approve Minutes from the August 4, 2015 Special Joint Meeting with 
Paradise Irrigation District and the August 11, 2015 Regular Town Council 
Meeting. 

3b. Approve cash disbursements for August 2015 in the amount of 
$1,065,764.58. 

3c. Accept a $1,000 cash donation to the Paradise Fire Department.  

3d. Authorize the Town Manager to execute documents to purchase the 
Police Vehicle Emergency Equipment and Installation to Sutter Buttes 
Communications Inc, 445 Palora Ave.,Yuba City, California 95991 for a 
total amount of $41,398.30.  The vehicles will be financed through a five-
year lease purchase agreement approved by Council on August 11, 2015. 

3e. Award Contract 15-12, Fire Engine Exhaust Removal Project, to Air 
Vacuum, Inc. of Dover, NH in the amount of their bid of $20,511.00 and 
authorize the Town Manager to execute the Agreement. 

3f. Approve an amended and restated professional services agreement with 
Lauren Gill for Town Manager services with an expiration date of June 30, 
2020 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. 

3g. Acknowledge receipt of the 4th Quarter Investment Report for the Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2015. 

3h. Approve reading ordinance by title only; and, introduce Ordinance No. 557 
adding Chapter 15.14 of the Town of Paradise Municipal Code relating to 
Expedited Permitting Procedure for Small Residential Rooftop Solar 
Systems.  

2



3 
 

3i. Authorize the Town Manager to enter into a one-year Partnership 
Investment with 3Core.  A partnership with 3Core is a requirement for 
applying to EDA and other grants which could provide funding for a sewer 
and other projects.    

3j. Approve Resolution No. 15-36, A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Paradise Approving Government Crime Policies for the Purpose 
of Bonding Town Officers and Employees and Establishing Policy Limits. 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

The Town Council has adopted the following procedure for public hearings: 

                 a.           Staff report to Council (15 minutes total maximum) 

                 b.           Mayor or Presiding Chair opens the hearing for public comment  

                               in the following order: 

                               1.           Project proponents or in favor of(15-minute time limit)  

                               2.           Project opponents or against (15-minute time limit) 

                               3.           Rebuttals - when requested  

                                             (15-minute time limit or 3 minutes per speaker) 

                 c.           Close hearing to the public 

                 d.           Council discussion 

                 e.            Motion 

                 f.             Vote 

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5a. (1) Conduct a public hearing to receive comment on the Consolidated 
Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program; and, (2) Authorize the Town 
Manager to submit the CAPER to the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development.  (ROLL CALL VOTE) 

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

This is the time for members of the audience who have completed a "Request to Address Council" card and 

given it to the Clerk to present items not on the Agenda. Comments should be limited to a maximum of three 

minutes duration. The Town Council is prohibited by State Law from taking action on any item presented if it is 

not listed on the Agenda.   

7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

7a. Consider adopting Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution of the Town 
Council of the Town of Paradise Granting Consent to the County of Butte 
to Form the Butte County Tourism Business Improvement District 
(BCTBID).  (ROLL CALL VOTE) 

7b. Consider awarding Contract 15-13, Pearson Road Pavement 
Rehabilitation Project, to Franklin Construction of Chico, California, in the 
amount of their bid of $99,979.00; and, (2) Acknowledge Paradise 
Irrigation District’s Letter of Intent dated August 27, 2015 to reimburse the 

3



4 
 

Town of Paradise for incurred pavement rehabilitation costs. (ROLL CALL 
VOTE) 

7c. Consider Awarding Contract 14-05, Clark Road Safety Enhancements, to 
Franklin Construction of Chico, California in the amount of their bid of 
$441,441.00 and authorizing the Town Manager to execute.   (ROLL 
CALL VOTE) 

 
7d. Consider (1) Adopting Resolution No. 15-__, ”A Resolution of the Town 

Council of the Town of Paradise Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing 
Repair or Replacement of the Paradise Police Department Building 
Exterior Siding Without Observance of Public Bidding Requirements”; and, 
(2) Authorizing the Town Manager to execute agreements for a contractor 
and/or materials for the subject project. (ROLL CALL VOTE) 

7e. Consider (1) Adopting Resolution No. 15-__, “A Resolution of the Town 
Council of the Town of Paradise Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing 
Repair or Replacement of the Guardrail on Skyway Without Observance 
of Public Bidding Requirements”; and, (2) Awarding Contract 15-15 
Skyway Guardrail Repair to Santos Excavating in the amount of their bid 
of $24,842.00 and authorizing the Town Manager and Town Attorney to 
execute any necessary documents.  (ROLL CALL VOTE)   

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 

8a. Discuss responsibility and procedures for cleanup of roadways after traffic 
collisions.  (LOTTER) 

8b. Consider approving a letter of support to Representative Doug LaMalfa for 
H.R. 2775 regarding Remote Transaction Parity Tax. 

8c.  Consider designating an additional alternate voting delegate regarding the 
League of California Cities 2015 annual conference.   

 8d.     Council oral reports of their representation on Committees/Commissions. 

 8e.     Discussion of future agenda items 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 

9a.     Town Manager oral reports 

9b.     Community Development Director oral reports 

10.   CLOSED SESSION 

10a. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(a), the Town Council will 
hold a closed session to meet with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and 
Town Manager Lauren Gill relating to existing litigation as follows:  

4



5 
 

(1) Town of Paradise vs. Brandy L. Braun, Butte County Superior Court 
Case No. 164611. 

(2)  Harold Funk vs. Town of Paradise, U.S. District Court, Eastern District 
of California, Case No. 2:09-cv-01000-MCE-KJM.   

(3) Richard Martin vs. Town of Paradise, U.S. District Court, Eastern 
District of California, Case No. 2:15-cv-00594-JAM-AC. 

(4)  Denise Russell vs. County of Butte; Town of Paradise, U.S. district 
Court, Eastern District of California, Case No. 2:14-cv-00694-TLN-CMK. 

10b. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Town Council 
will hold a closed session to meet with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and 
Town Manager Lauren Gill relating to significant exposure to litigation, one 
potential case, concerning allegation of Brown Act violation by M. 
Zuccolillo.  

11.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

5



MINUTES 

PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL / PARADISE IRRIGATION DISTRICT BOARD 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING – 6:00 PM – August 04, 2015 

1.  Opening 

The special joint meeting of the Paradise Town Council and the Paradise Irrigation 
District Board was called to order by Mayor Greg Bolin who led the Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag of the United States of America. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Steve “Woody” Culleton, Jody Jones, Scott Lotter, 
John Rawlings and Greg Bolin, Mayor.  No council member was absent. 

PID BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Sep Carola, Larry Duncan, Doug Flesher, Bill 
Kellogg and Ken Hunt, President.  No board members were absent.  

2.  Purpose Statement 

The purpose of the joint meeting was to collaborate on shared issues in order to 
continue to maximize public resources for benefit of the citizens/ratepayers as well as to 
meet the Town's General Plan requirements. 

3.  Discussion 

The following items were discussed and no action was taken on any matter. 

a. Urban Water Management Plan 
b. Drought Impacts to the Community  
c. Water Conservation  
d. Community Outreach 
e. Fire Hydrant Fund 
f. Sewer and Gray Water Systems 
g. Future mitigations related to the drought  
h. New Construction Standards 
i. Elliott Road Overlay Project 

4.  Adjournment 

Mayor Bolin adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 

Date Approved: 

 

By:  ________________________________ _____________________________ 
 Greg Bolin, Mayor    Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 ______________________________ ______________________________ 
 Kenneth G. Hunt, President  Georgeanna Borrayo, PID Board Clerk 
  

6



MINUTES 
PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – August 11, 2015 
1.     OPENING 

The Regular Meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Bolin at 6:00 
p.m. in the Town Council Chamber at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, CA.  Following the      
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, Vice Mayor Jody 
Jones offered an invocation. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Steve “Woody” Culleton, Jody Jones, Scott Lotter, 
John J. Rawlings and Greg Bolin, Mayor. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Town Manager Lauren Gill, Town Attorney Dwight Moore, Town 
Clerk Joanna Gutierrez,  Finance Director Gina Will, Business and Housing Services 
Supervisor Kate Anderson, Assistant Town Clerk Dina Volenski, Human Resources 
Manager Crystal Peters, Building Official/Fire Marshal Anthony Lindsey, Assistant 
Planner Susan Hartman, Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox, IT 
Manager Josh Marquis, Police Chief Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen and North Division Chief 
David Hawks, Cal Fire/Paradise Fire. 
 
 1e.      Presentation:   

 North Division Chief David Hawks and Sharon Christiansen, Bare on the Ridge, 
recognized the individuals and businesses responsible for donation of cameras, 
solar panels to power the cameras, and the labor to install equipment to ensure a 
24/7 365 day a week operation of the Sawmill Peak lookout tower project.  Bare 
on the Ridge is a non-profit organization whose volunteers plan and hold a 
variety of fundraising events throughout the year to help maintain the fire watch 
system at Sawmill Peak Lookout Tower. Sawmill Peak provides critical 
information to firefighters, which helps reduce the risk to life and land, and save 
taxpayer money. The state cut regular staff funding for Sawmill Peak in 2001. 
Since that time, various groups and organizations, including Bare on the Ridge, 
have stepped in to fill the gap. (630-20-21) 

 

2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS – None. 

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION by Jones, seconded by Culleton, approved the following consent calendar 
items as presented by unanimous roll call vote. 

3a. Approved Minutes from the Adjourned June 29, 2015 and Regular July 14, 
2015 Town Council meetings. 

7



3b. Approved cash disbursements for July 2015 in the amount of 
$3,121,144.93. (310-10-30) 

3c. Adopted Town of Paradise Resolution No. 15-30, “A Resolution of the 
Town of Paradise Authorizing Preparation & Submittal of Fund 
Applications to Cal Recycle and Other State Agencies”. (940-10-28) 

3d. (1) Awarded the 15/16 Simplivity Bid for hyper converged infrastructure 
and support services to the sole bidder, Optitec Systems, in the amount of 
$92,992.02; and, (2) Authorized the Town Manager to execute the 
documents necessary to purchase the (3) Simplivity CN2200 appliances 
and the five-year Gold Support.  (510-20-106 & 380-45-53) 

Simplivity is a hardware and software vendor that specializes in delivering 
hyper converged infrastructure.  This infrastructure will enable IT staff to 
further consolidate the Fire and Police (FDPD) and Town Hall (TH) sites 
for many years.   

3e. (1) Approved appropriate budget adjustments for automobile purchase, 
and; (2) Authorized the Police Department to award the Volunteers in 
Police Service (VIPS) SUV Vehicle Bid (One 2014 Dodge Journey Utility 
Vehicle) to Red Bluff Dodge, 545 Adobe Road, Red Bluff, CA 96080, and; 
(3) Authorized the Town Manager to arrange financing for the remaining 
$8,877 (either through lease purchase or through the Town of Paradise 
loaning the funds).  (340-40-14, 380-45-53 & 480-35-02) 

The purchase of a VIPS vehicle will have no impact on the General Fund. 
The VIPS currently have $15,000 to use as a down payment, and the 
remaining $8,877 (includes light bar) plus fees and interest would be paid 
by the VIPS donation fund in the form of a 5 year lease/purchase plan 
payment. The financing would either be added to the proposed lease 
purchase detailed in a separate staff report or loaned by the Town of 
Paradise with the same lease purchase terms. 

3f. Authorized the award of the Police Patrol Vehicle Bid (Three 2016 Ford 
Interceptor Utility Vehicles) to Downtown Ford, 525 North 16th St., 
Sacramento, CA 95811; and, authorized the Town Manager to execute 
documents necessary for the purchase of the vehicles.  Downtown Ford is 
the low bidder at $28,066.25 for each vehicle - $84,198.75 for three 
vehicles.   (380-45-53, 340-40-14 & 480-35-02) 

3g. (1) Authorized the Police Department to award the Police Unmarked 
Investigation Vehicle Bid (Two 2014 Dodge Journey Utility Vehicles) to 
Red Bluff Dodge, 545 Adobe Road, Red Bluff, CA 96080.  Red Bluff 
Dodge is the low bidder at $21,377.00 (or $42,754.00 for two vehicles; 
AND, (2) Authorized the Town Manager to execute the necessary 
document to purchase the vehicles.   (380-45-53, 340-40-14 & 480-35-02) 

8



3h. Authorized the Town Manager to execute the documents necessary to 
order and purchase a Type 1 Pierce fire engine.  The total cost of the 
engine is $487,550.00 and will be paid for by lease purchase. (380-45-53 & 

440-30-04) 

3i. (1) Approved Resolution No. 15-31, A Resolution of the Town of Paradise 
Certifying to the County of Butte the Validity of the Legal Process Used to 
Place Direct Charges (Special Assessments) on the Secured Tax Roll; (2) 
Authorized the Town Manager and Finance Director to approve direct 
charge (special assessment) changes; and, (3) Authorized the Town 
Manager to execute an agreement with Butte County for continued 
services related to the direct assessments on the property tax roll. (395-70-

13, 540-10-20, 550-40-51 & 510-20-107) 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

Mayor Bolin informed the public of the Town Council adopted public hearing procedure. 

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5a. Following a report from Assistant Planner Hartman regarding the official 
request for a change to the name of a private road from Derrough Lane to 
Sir Court, Mayor Bolin opened the public hearing at 6:23 p.m.  There were 
no speakers for or against the matter and Mayor Bolin closed the public 
hearing at 6:23 p.m.  

 MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Rawlings, adopted Resolution No. 15-
32, “A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise Officially 
Changing the Name of a Certain Private Road (Derrough Lane) located in 
the Town of Paradise to be Henceforth Named: Sir Court.” Roll call vote 
was unanimous.  (950-65-06) 

5b. Following a report from Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox 
regarding the recommendation to file CEQA exemptions on three Capital 
Improvement Projects, Mayor Bolin opened the public hearing at 6:29 pm. 

 1.  Jon Remalia stated that his concern is that the speed of traffic might 
increase if the Cypress Curve is straightened out, that the curve currently 
slows traffic. 

 Mayor Bolin closed the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 

 MOTION by Rawlings, seconded by Lotter, concurred with staff 
recommendation and authorized the filing of California Environmental 
Quality Act Notice of Exemptions for the following projects:   

 (1) Cypress Curve Realignment Project - Clark Road between Adams 
Road and Kimberly Lane Road rehabilitation and realignment for purposes 
of safety; (2) Pearson Rd Shoulder Widening Project - Pearson Road 
between Clark Road and Pentz Road rehabilitation and shoulder widening 
for purposes of installing bicycle lanes and safety; and, (3) Clark Road 

9



Safety Enhancements - Clark Road between Bille Road and Wagstaff 
Road rehabilitation and re-striping for the purposes of safety.  Roll call 
vote was unanimous.  (950-40-21, 950-40-23 & 950-40-24)    

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – Non Agenda Items 

1.  Jerry Smith, retired Butte County Sheriff, representative of the Butte County Fair, 
appointed by Fifth District Supervisor Doug Teeter, invited the Town Council to  the fair 
and to the Butte County Fair Board business meeting on August 27, 2015.  
 
2.  Michael Zuccolillo addressed Council regarding his removal from the Paradise 
Planning Commission, alleged violation of the Brown Act relating to his removal, and 
asked for the Town Council Members‟ resignations.  Mr. Zuccolillo provided a written 
copy of his presentation to the Town Council and to the Town Clerk to be retained for 
the public record.     
 
7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

7a. MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Rawlings, approved Resolution No. 
15-33, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise 
authorizing the execution and delivery of a lease with option to purchase, 
and authorizing certain actions in connection therewith; and, approve 
recommended budget adjustments outlined under the financial impact 
section of this report.  Approval will result in the lease purchase of 
computer hardware, IT infrastructure and public safety vehicles.  Roll call 
vote was unanimous.  (380-45-53) 

7b. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Culleton, adopted Resolution 15-34, A 
Resolution of the Town of Paradise Authorizing and Approving the 
Borrowing of Funds for Fiscal Year 2015-2016, the Issuance and Sale of a 
2015-2016 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note Therefore, and Approving 
Certain Other Actions Related thereto.  Roll call vote was unanimous. 
Approval authorizes an amount not to exceed $2.5 million at a fixed 
interest rate of 1.35% for ten (10) months.  (350-40-16) 

Following a report by Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox on the 
engineering services for Pearson Road Safe Routes to School Connectivity 
Project, Mayor Bolin called for public comment. 

1.  Ward Habriel stated that he would like the funding for Pearson Road Safe 
Routes to School Project to be applied to other roads that are in worse shape. 

2.  Thomas Wahl stated that the storm drain and entire corner near his home on 
Pearson is a problem for him, that the new sidewalk will be one-foot from his 
property line, that the Town permitted his neighbor‟s project and created problem 
for his property.  

 

10



7c. MOTION by Culleton, seconded by Jones, (1) Concurred with staff‟s 
recommendation of NorthStar Engineering to perform engineering 
services for the Pearson Rd SR2S Connectivity Project; (2) Approved a 
Professional Services Agreement with NorthStar Engineering in the 
amount of $166,385.01 and authorized the Town Manager to execute; 
and, (3) Authorized the Town Manager to execute additional work orders 
up to 10% of the contract amount.  Roll call vote was unanimous.  The 
professional services agreement and respective services will be 100% 
funded by the State Active Transportation Program. (510-20-108 & 950-40-25)   

7d. Following a report from Public Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox 
regarding the Clark Road Safety Enhancements project, Mayor Bolin 
called for public comment cards.   

1.  Ward Habriel stated that he objects to expenditure of tax money at this 
intersection when there are other roads in greater states of disrepair. 

2.  Jon Remalia asked questions relating to funding sources for the project and 
type of equipment that will be used for the repair and if there is a chance that 
Elliott Road could be addressed when the construction equipment is in the area. 

3.  Brenton Stockwell asked how the construction will affect businesses in the 
area and that he supports the project. 

MOTION by Culleton, seconded by Jones, adopted Resolution No. 15-35, A 
Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise approving the Plans and 
Specifications for the Clark Road Safety Enhancements and Authorizing 
Advertisement for Bids on the Project.  Roll call vote was unanimous.  (950-40-24) 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 

8a. Consider direction to staff regarding extension of the Northern Recycling 
and Waste Services (NRWS) Franchise Agreement for solid and 
vegetative waste removal and recycling, specifically including a 15-year 
extension, review of agreement provisions and notice requirements.  
(CULLETON) 

Council Member Culleton stated that he placed this item on the agenda as he 
believes there is cause to act sooner than later in addressing the provision in the 
contract with NRWS that provides for an automatic three-year extension, and 
asked Council to direct a work effort from staff to review the terms of the renewal, 
to determine if a notice to the ratepayers and/or a local code amendment will be 
necessary. 

Council concurred to direct the staff, along with the Mayor and Vice Mayor, to 
meet with NRWS staff with regard to the franchise renewal process. 

1.  Ward Habriel stated that the Town should be very proud of what has been 
accomplished by NRWS, as everything being done is for the good of the Town, 
that he supports a 15-year extension, and that Paradise made the 50% waste 

11



reduction to the landfill long before any other jurisdiction, and that the California 
Integrated Waste Management Board is considering a 75% reduction mandate. 

2.  Loren Harvey asked if the contract is extended to a sole provider, how will the 
costs be controlled, that the Town receives a quarter of a million dollars from the 
franchise, and he is concerned that there is no competition. 

 8b.     Council oral reports of their representation on Committees/Commissions. 

Vice Mayor Jones is working on a presentation to the Chico City Council relating to a 
wastewater solution for the Town of Paradise that could involve the City of Chico. 
 
Council Member Culleton reported that the Dutch Oven Cook-off for the benefit of the 
Gold Nugget Museum was a success netting $2,000 for the museum and the Boys and 
Girls Club. 
 
Council Member Lotter hosted a K-9 Training at his Cinema Seven theatre, that trainers 
from CCSI, Tehama County and Willows were present; that he went on a CALFIRE ride 
along and toured the command center and viewed pictures taken by the Sawmill Peak 
ForestWatch cameras and Chico Air Tac Base; and, attended the Dutch Over Cook-off. 
 
Council Member Rawlings attended an animal control meeting which is refocusing on 
sustainability of the operation; the agenda setting meeting in the Manager‟s office; the 
joint meeting with Paradise Irrigation District; several evenings at Party in the Park as a 
town representative; and the BCAG and the BCAQMD meetings as the alternate. 
 
Mayor Bolin attended the K-9 training and thanked Council Member Lotter for providing 
the training venue; and, informed Council that Alliance Kingdom Builders (AKB) will be 
painting the fire station. 
 
 8c.     Discussion of future agenda items 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 

9a.     Town Manager oral reports – None 

9b.     Community Development Director oral reports 

Assistant Planner Susan Hartman provided a project update as follows: 

 Two new businesses established at Liberty Plaza: Kaia Fit and a boxing gym 

 Pheasant Commons working towards Certificates of Compliance by September 
1st for three of the five building units 

 Verizon cell town at Extra Storage on Elliott 

 St. Thomas More request to modify a use permit to add a fifth module 

 Hunter-Hanosh dental facility being established on Skyway behind Holiday – 
Public hearing is set for the Planning Commission to consider a request to modify 
setback line by two feet.  

12



 Online submittal of onsite evaluations has „gone live‟ but is not mandatory 

 Code enforcement has served a 30-day public nuisance abatement notice on 
property located at Nunneley and Sawmill and the owners are responsive. 
 

10.   CLOSED SESSION 

At 8:03 p.m. Mayor Bolin announced that the Town Council would recess to closed 

session for the following: 

10a. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1), the Town Council 
will hold a closed session with Town Attorney Dwight Moore and Town 
Manager Lauren Gill pertaining to the following existing litigation:  Town of 
Paradise vs. Brandy L. Braun, Butte County Superior Court Case No. 
164611. 

10b. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957, the Town Council will hold 
a closed session relating to performance evaluation of Town Manager. 

Town Clerk Gutierrez and Town Attorney Moore exited the closed session at 
8:20 p.m.  Attorney Moore announced that the following action was taken in 
closed session: 

MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Culleton, authorized the Town Manager and 
the Town Attorney to execute the “Agreement to Settle Pending Petition for the 
Appointment of a Receiver to Abate Public Nuisances and State Housing Law 
Violations on Real Property that Substantially Endanger the Health and Safety of 
the Residents and Public”.  Roll call vote was unanimous. 

Mayor Bolin reconvened the meeting at 9:35 p.m. and announced that the 
following action was taken in closed session:  

Council concurred unanimously to extend the term of the Professional Services 
Agreement with Lauren Gill for Town Manager Services by four years, expiring 
June 30, 2020, and directed Town Manager Lauren Gill to bring forward an 
amended and restated professional services agreement to the September 8, 
2015 Council Meeting as a consent calendar item.   
 

11.   ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Bolin adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m. 

Date approved: 

By:   ______________________  _____________________________ 
 Greg Bolin, Mayor    Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



1 

 

    TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 3(c) 

ORIGINATED BY: Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
                                                 
SUBJECT:                 Donation to the Paradise Fire Department  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:   Accept the cash donation from Kay Strawn and Tom Gale 
to the Paradise Fire Department in the amount of $1,000.  
 
Background:  On August 19, 2015, the Town Clerk received a donation from Kay Strawn and 
Tom Gale in the amount of $1,000 for the Paradise Fire department.   
 
Discussion:   The Town Council’s resolution provides for the formal presentation and 
acceptance of donations made to the Town of Paradise at a public meeting.  The process 
provides a tax record for the citizen or organization as well as clear direction to the finance 
director to deposit such donations to specific accounts as requested by donor(s). 
 
As such, the Council is requested to accept the $1,000 donation to the Paradise Fire 
Department and to direct the deposit be made to the appropriate fire department services 
account.   
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis:  The donation will increase the funding of fire department services in 
the amount of $1,000.00.     

22



                                TOWN OF PARADISE 
COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY 

DATE:  September 8, 2015 
 

         AGENDA ITEM: 3(d) 
 
ORIGINATED BY:  Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Chief of Police    
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 
 

(1) Authorize the Town Manager to execute documents to purchase the Police Vehicle 
Emergency Equipment and Installation of Equipment to Sutter Buttes 
Communications Inc, 445 Palora Ave., Yuba City, California 95991. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Refer the Vehicle Emergency Equipment and Installation Plan back to Staff for further 
development.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On the August 11, 2015, Council Meeting, Town Council approved the purchase of 
three 2016 Ford Interceptor Utility Vehicles. Historically the Police Department has 
reused emergency equipment from decommissioned police vehicles to equip new 
vehicles. This year; however, some of the old equipment (now third generation) will not 
fit the new vehicles and other pieces of equipment are becoming unserviceable; as 
such this requires the purchase and installation of new equipment.  
 
Requests for Proposals were sent out with a bid opening date of August 25, 2015, at 
1pm. On August 25, 2015, at 1pm the bids were opened in the council chambers. The 
results of the bid process are attached. Sutter Butte Communications Inc. was the 
lowest bid which matched the given specification of the equipment at $41,398.30 for 
three vehicles ($13,799.43 per vehicle). There was one lower bid, but the equipment did 
not meet the required specifications of the equipment requested.  
 
DISCUSSION:   
The requested equipment is required for the new police vehicles as the old equipment will 
not fit the new vehicles and/or have become unserviceable.  We are in the fortunate 
position, due to the passing of Measure “C”, to purchase new equipment for our new 
police vehicles.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The purchase of the vehicle emergency equipment and installation for the three 
vehicles will cost a total of $41,398.30, which will be paid by the five (5) year municipal 
lease approved at the last Town Council meeting. The lease payment will be funded by 
Measure C funds and not from Police General Fund expenditure accounts.       

23



24



 
1 
 

 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 3 (e) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT: Fire Station Exhaust Removal Contract Award (Measure C) 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. Award Contract 15-12, Fire Engine Exhaust Removal Project, to Air Vacuum, Inc. of 
Dover, NH in the amount of their bid of $20,511.00 and authorize the Town Manager to 
execute the agreement. 

 
Background:  

Paradise Fire Stations 81 and 82 are in need of diesel exhaust removal system to prevent 
exposure to diesel exhaust from fire apparatus and other diesel powered vehicles.  Both the 
apparatus bays and the living quarters are affected due to the living quarters being attached to 
the apparatus bays.  The proposed system will remove the toxins from the apparatus bays and 
create a negative pressure in the apparatus bay, thereby preventing flow of the toxins into the 
living quarters.  The proposed systems will make for a safer working environment by helping to 
ensure workers are not exposed to diesel exhaust health hazards.  The below paragraphs are 
direct quotes from The California Department of Health Services Occupational Health Branch 
and speak directly to the hazards of diesel exhaust.     
 
Diesel Engine exhaust is a mixture of thousands of different gases and tiny particles. These 
particles include polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) and metals such as nickel and 
arsenic (these are known to cause human cancer).  Most diesel particles are small enough to be 
inhaled deep into the lungs, where they pose the greatest hazard.  Diesel exhaust contains 20 
times more particles than gasoline exhaust does.  Some of the toxic gases in diesel exhaust are 
nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides, and carbon monoxide. 
 
Long-term exposure to diesel exhaust particles poses the highest risk of any toxic air 
contamination evaluated by California’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment.  
On average, long-term occupational exposures to diesel exhaust are associated with a 40 
percent increase in the relative risk of lung cancer.  California’s Air Resources Board (CARB) 
estimates that 70 percent of the cancer risk that the average Californian faces from breathing 
toxic air contaminants stems from diesel exhaust particles.  Diesel exhaust also causes lung 
diseases such as asthma, and it may damage the immune system, increasing the risk of 
allergies.  
  
Analysis:  

On July 30, 2015, Town of Paradise staff issued a formal Notice to Bidders for Fire Engine 
Exhaust Removal Project. The project work description is as follows: 
 

Perform all necessary work to Fire Station #81 and #82, including installation of 
complete fire engine exhaust removal system to meet 2013 Edition NFPA 1500 9-1.5, 
OSHA, NIOSH, and FEMA standards. The system shall be fixed to the buildings and 
have a hose mechanism which connects directly to fire engine exhaust pipes to 
completely remove exhaust from the station garages.  

 

25



 
2 
 

 

 
The project plans and specifications was provided to twelve local, regional and national 
contractor exchanges. Plans and specifications were not purchased by any contractors. 

On August 25, 2015, zero bids were received by the Town Clerk. 

After receiving zero bids, Public Works staff is able to directly work with an interested contractor 
to perform the project work. Staff contacted Air Vacuum, Inc. to determine their interest in 
providing services for the project. Air Vacuum, Inc. provided a project quotation with information 
on their standard terms for services. Air Vacuum, Inc. was unable to provide a bid during the 
formal solicitation process due to the standard terms of a formal public works contract. Air 
Vacuum, Inc. was provided the Town’s Professional Services Agreement to formalize the 
contract. 

The proposed scope of work and contract agreement is attached to this staff report as Exhibit A.  

Staff recommends award of Contract 15-12 to Air Vacuum, Inc. in the amount of their bid of 
$20,511.00. Air Vacuum, Inc. has performed comparable work for Butte County and 
communities throughout the country. This technology has been evaluated and determined the 
most cost effective solution for the Town’s needs. 

 
Financial Impact:  
 
The total turnkey construction cost is $20,511. Project funding will be drawn from Measure C 
“Exhaust Evacuation System (Station 81 & 82)”, Account No. 1010.25.4420.325.5303.  
 
Alternatives:  
 
Delay or modify recommended action. 
 

 

26



27



  1 of 14 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This Agreement is made and entered into on __________________ by and between the 

Town of Paradise, a municipal corporation (“Town”) and Air Vacuum, Inc.   

(“Contractor”). 

RECITALS 

A. Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the special 

engineering and software services which will be required by this Agreement; and 

B. Contractor possesses the skill, experience, ability, background, certification, and 

knowledge to provide the services described in this Agreement on the terms and 

conditions described herein. 

C. Town desires to retain Contractor to render professional engineering services as set forth 

in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

1 SCOPE OF SERVICES.   
 

Except as specified in this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish all technical and 

professional services, including labor, material, equipment, transportation, supervision 

and expertise (collectively referred to as “Services”) to satisfactorily complete the work 

required by Town at his/her own risk and expense. Services to be provided to Town are 

more fully described in Exhibit A entitled “SCOPE OF SERVICES.” All of the exhibits 

referenced in this Agreement are attached and are incorporated by this reference. 

 

28



  2 of 14 

1.1 Town Obligations 

All data applicable to the project and in possession of the Town are to be made available 

to the Contractor. 

2 TIME OF PERFORMANCE.   
The services of Contractor shall commence on _______   , and shall terminate upon full 

project completion.  

3 COMPENSATION.   
Contractor’s compensation for all services under this Agreement shall not exceed 

$20,511.00 and shall be in accordance with the charges set forth in Exhibit “B”.  In no 

event shall Contractor’s compensation exceed Costs and Fees set forth in Exhibit “B” 

without the prior approval of the Town Council.  . 

4 METHOD OF PAYMENT.   
Contractor shall submit monthly billings, or progress invoices to Town describing the 

work performed during the preceding month.  Contractor’s bills shall include a brief 

description of the services performed, the date the services were performed, the number 

of hours spent and by whom, and a description of any reimbursable expenditures and 

segregated by test methods or by specific tasks.  Town shall pay Contractor progress 

payments no later than 30 days after approval of the monthly invoice by Town staff.  

Approval of the monthly invoice requires the submittal of certified payrolls when 

prevailing wages rates are in effect for work done during applicable month.  Certified 

payrolls are to be submitted on a weekly basis and within ten days after the week in 

question.  

4.1 Retention Of Payment 

 When payments made by Town equal 95% of the maximum fee provided for in this 

29



  3 of 14 

Agreement, no further payments shall be made until the final work under this Agreement, 

or for each individual project relating to the Contractor’s services has been accepted by 

the Town. 

4.2 Cost Principles 

4.2.a The Contractor agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, 

Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31 et seq., shall be used 

to determine the allowability of individual items of cost. 

4.2.b The Contractor also agrees to comply with Federal procedures in accordance with 

49 CFR, part 18, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and 

Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments.  

4.2.c Any costs for which payment has been made to Contractor that are determined by 

subsequent audit to be unallowable under 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition 

Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31 et seq., OR 49 CFR, Part 18, Uniform 

Administrative requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and 

Local Governments, are subject to repayment by the Contractor to State. 

4.2.d Any subcontract in excess of $25,000, entered into as a result of this Agreement, 

shall contain all the provisions of this Section. 

4.3 Contingent Fee 

The Contractor warrants, by execution of this Agreement, that no person or selling 

agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, 

excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies 

maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business.  For breach or 

30



  4 of 14 

violation of this warranty, the State has the right to annul this Agreement without 

liability, pay on the value of the work actually performed, or in its discretion, to deduct 

from the agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such 

commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

4.4 Retention Of Records/Audit 

4.4.a For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code Section 

10115, et seq. And Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 

2500 et. seq., when applicable, and other matters connected with the performance 

of the Agreement pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, the Contractor, 

subContractors, and the State shall maintain all books, documents, papers, 

accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of the 

Agreement, including but not limited to, the costs of administering the agreement.  

All parties shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all 

reasonable times during the Agreement period and for three years from the date of 

final payment under the Agreement.  The State, the State Auditor, FHWA, or any 

duly authorized representative of the Federal government having jurisdiction 

under Federal laws or regulations (including the basis of Federal funding in whole 

or in part) shall have access to any books, records, and documents of the 

Contractor that are pertinent to the Agreement from audits, examinations, 

excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.  

4.4.b Any subcontract in excess of $25,000, entered into as a result of this Agreement, 

shall contain all the provisions of this Section. 

5 EXTRA WORK.    
At any time during the term of this Agreement, Town may request that Contractor 

31



  5 of 14 

perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which is 

determined by Town to be necessary for the proper completion of Contractor’s services, 

but which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of 

this Agreement.  Contractor shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work 

without prior written authorization from Town. 

6 TERMINATION.   
This Agreement may be terminated by the Town immediately for cause or by either party 

without cause upon fifteen (15) days written notice of termination.  Upon termination, 

Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for services properly performed up to the 

effective date of termination. 

7 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.   
All reports, plans, studies, documents, and other writings prepared by and for Contractor, 

in the course of implementing this Agreement, except working notes and internal 

documents, shall become the property of the Town upon payment to Contractor for such 

work, and the Town shall have the sole right to use such materials in its discretion 

without further compensation to Contractor or to any other party.  Contractor shall, at 

Contractor’s expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, documents, and other writings 

to Town within three (3) days after written request. Contractor shall not be responsible 

for liabilities, losses, or claims resulting from unauthorized modifications, or reuse other 

than original intended purpose. 

8 LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.   
This Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for Town to copy, use, 

modify, reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual 

property embodied in documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of 

32



  6 of 14 

expression, including, but not limited to, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on 

computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Contractor under this 

Agreement (“Documents and Data”).  Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor 

has the legal right to license any and all Documents and Data.  Contractor makes no such 

representation and warranty in regard to Documents and Data which may be provided to 

Contractor by Town.  Town shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents 

and Data at any time. 

8.1 Confidentiality.   

All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, procedures, drawings, descriptions, 

computer program data, input record data, written information, and other Documents and 

Data either created by or provided to Contractor in connection with the performance of 

this Agreement shall be held confidential by Contractor.  Such materials shall not, 

without the prior written consent of Town, be used by Contractor for any purposes other 

than the performance of the services under this Agreement.  Nor shall such materials be 

disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance of the services 

under this Agreement.  Nothing furnished to Contractor, which is otherwise known to 

Contractor or is generally known, or has become known, to the related industry shall be 

deemed confidential.  Contractor shall not use Town’s name, seal, or photographs 

relating to project for which Contractor’s services are rendered, or participate in any 

publicity pertaining to the Contractor’s services under this Agreement in any magazine, 

trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without 

the prior written consent of Town. 

33



  7 of 14 

8.2 Contractor’s Books and Records. 

8.2.a Contractor shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 

vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating 

to charges for services, expenditures and disbursements charged to Town for a 

minimum period of two (2) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 

the date of final payment to Contractor to this Agreement. 

8.2.b Contractor shall maintain all documents and records which demonstrate 

performance under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any 

longer period required by law, from the date of termination or completion of this 

Agreement. 

8.2.c Any records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be made available for inspection or audit, at any time during regular business 

hours, upon written request by the Town Manager, Town Attorney, Town Finance 

Director, or a designated representative of these officers.  Copies of such 

documents shall be provided to the Town for inspection at Town Hall when it is 

practical to do so.  Otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, the 

records shall be available at Contractor’s address indicated for receipt of notices 

in this Agreement. 

8.2.d Where Town has reason to believe that such records or documents may be lost or 

discarded due to dissolution, disbandment or termination of Contractor’s business, 

Town may, by written request by any of the above named officers, require that 

custody of the records be given to the Town and that the records and documents 

be maintained by Town Hall.  

34



  8 of 14 

9 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
It is understood that Contractor, in the performance of the work and services agreed to be 

performed, shall act as and be an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent or 

employee of the Town.  Contractor shall obtain no rights to retirement benefits or other 

benefits which accrue to Town’s employees, and Contractor hereby expressly waives any 

claim it may have to any such rights. 

10 INTEREST OF CONTRACTOR. 
Contractor (including principals, associates, and professional employees and 

subcontractors) covenants and represents that it does not now have any investment or 

interest in real property and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in the area 

covered by this Agreement or any other source of income, interest in real property or 

investment which would be affected in any manner or degree by the performance of 

Contractor’s services hereunder.  Contractor further covenants and represents that in the 

performance of its duties hereunder no person having any such interest shall perform any 

services under this Agreement. 

Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of the Political Reform Act 

because  

Contractor: 

a. will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to its rendition of 

information, advice, recommendation, or counsel independent of the control and 

direction of the Town or any Town official, other than normal agreement 

monitoring; and 

b. possesses no authority with respect to any Town decision beyond rendition of 

information, advice, recommendation or counsel.  (FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2).) 

35



  9 of 14 

11 PROFESSIONAL ABILITY OF CONTRACTOR. 
Town has relied upon the professional training and ability of Contractor to perform the 

services hereunder as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor 

shall have ____________   manage and approve the work of all persons performing 

professional services under this Agreement.  All work performed by Contractor under 

this Agreement shall be in accordance with applicable legal requirements and shall meet 

the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in 

Contractor’s field of expertise. 

12 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 
Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession to comply with all applicable 

federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations. 

13 LICENSES. 
Contractor represents and warrants to Town that it has all licenses, permits, 

qualifications, insurance, and approvals of whatsoever nature, which are legally required 

of Contractor to practice its profession.  Contractor represents and warrants to Town that 

Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during 

the term of this Agreement, any licenses, permits, certifications, insurance and approvals 

which are required by the Town for its business. 

14 INDEMNITY. 
Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, 

officials, employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, 

actions, losses, damages, injuries, and liability, direct or indirect (including any and all 

costs and expenses in connection therein), arising from its negligent performance, 

misconduct or omissions relating to the services under this Agreement or its failure to 

36



  10 of 14 

comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except for any such 

claim arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Town, its officers, 

agents, employees or volunteers. 

15 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.   
Contractor, at Town’s own cost and expense, shall procure and maintain, for the duration 

of the Agreement, the insurance coverage and policies as set forth in Exhibit “C” attached 

hereto. 

16 NOTICES. 
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and will either 

be served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice shall be addressed 

to the other party at the address set forth below.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 

within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section. 

If to Town:  Marc Mattox  
   Public Works Director 
   Town of Paradise 
   5555 Skyway 
   Paradise, CA 95969 
 
If to Contractor: Air Vacuum, Inc. 
   PO Box 517 
   Dover, NH 03821 
    
 

17 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of Agreement between 

the Town and Contractor.  All prior written and oral communications, including 

correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations are superseded in total by this 

Agreement. 

37



  11 of 14 

18 AMENDMENTS. 
This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written document executed by 

both Contractor and Town and approved as to form by the Town Attorney. 

19 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING. 
The parties recognize that a substantial inducement to Town for entering into this 

Agreement is the professional reputation, experience, and competence of Contractor.  

Assignments of any or all rights, duties, or obligations of the Contractor under this 

Agreement will be permitted only with the express prior written consent of the Town.  No 

subcontractors (other than those listed on Exhibit “A”) shall work under this Agreement 

without the prior written authorization of the Town.  If Town consents to such 

subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible to Town for all acts or omissions of the 

subcontractor.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship 

between Town and a subcontractor of the Contractor nor shall it create any obligation on 

the part of the Town to pay or to see to the payment of any monies due to any such 

subcontractor other than as otherwise required by law.  Subcontracts shall physically 

contain the provisions contained in Federal Form 1273. 

20 WAIVER. 
Waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing 

waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or any other provision under this Agreement. 

21 SEVERABILITY. 
If any term or portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this 

Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

22 CONTROLLING LAW VENUE. 
This Agreement and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

38



  12 of 14 

California and any action brought relating to this Agreement shall be held exclusively in 

a state court in the County of Butte. 

23 LITIGATION EXPENSES AND ATTORNEY’S FEES. 
If either party to this Agreement commences any legal action against the other part 

arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 

reasonable litigation expenses, including court costs, expert witness fees, discovery 

expenses, and attorneys’ fees. 

24 MEDIATION. 
The parties agree to make a good faith attempt to resolve any disputes arising out of this 

Agreement through mediation prior to commencing litigation.  The parties shall mutually 

agree upon the mediator and shall divide the costs of mediation equally.  If the parties are 

unable to agree upon a mediator, the dispute shall be submitted to American Arbitration 

Association (AAA) or its successor in interest.  AAA shall provide the parties with the 

names of five qualified  

25 MEDIATORS. 
The Town and Contractor shall meet to select a mediator by each striking the names of 

two different proposed mediators and thereafter the mediator remaining shall hear the 

dispute.  If the dispute remains unresolved after mediation, either party may commence 

litigation. 

26 EXECUTION. 
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 

copy hereof shall have been signed by both parties hereto.  In approving this Agreement, 

it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

39



  13 of 14 

27 AUTHORITY TO ENTER AGREEMENT. 
Contractor has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business and to execute, 

deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each party warrants that the individuals who have 

signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and authority to make this Agreement 

and to bind each respective party. 

28 PROHIBITED INTERESTS. 
Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any company or 

person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor, to solicit or 

secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 

Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 

violation of this warranty, Town shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without 

liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of Town, 

during the term of his or her service with Town, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising there from. 

29 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT. 
Contractor represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate 

against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

religion, color, national origin, disability, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination 

shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, 

demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination. IN 

WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have cause this Agreement to be executed on the date 

first written above. 

40



  14 of 14 

TOWN OF PARADISE    “CONTRACTOR” 

 

By: _____________________________  By: ________________________________ 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager   Title: _______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 

 

By: ______________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney  Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

 

41



   
 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Scope of Services 

 

 

42



 
The World Leader In Engine Exhaust Removal 

  Systems for the Fire and EMS Industry 
 

 

P.O. Box 517 • Dover, NH 03821-0517 • Toll Free 800-540-7264 • Tel 603-743-4332 • Fax 603-743-3111 • www.airvac911.com 

AIRVAC 911® SPECIFICATIONS 
 
MODEL: AIRVAC 911®, VERTICAL AIR FLOW DESIGN, CEILING HUNG, RE-CIRCULATING AIR FILTRATION SYSTEM.  

MANUFACTURED BY: AIR VACUUM CORPORATION, 6 FARADAY DRIVE, DOVER, NH 03820. 

 

FILTRATION: “4-STAGE” FILTER PACK. ALL FILTERS ARE INDUSTRY STANDARD SIZED, UL TESTED & CERTIFIED. 

 

PRE-FILTER (STAGE 1): 24" X 24" X 1". 3-PLY POLYESTER CONSTRUCTION. TWO LAYERS OF 16/40 DUAL DENIER 

POLY FIBERS WITH A FINAL DUST CATCHING ADHESIVE LAYER. SELF-SEALING FILTER WITH PRE-INSTALLED 

INTERNAL HEAVY GAGE WIRE FRAME. PERFORMANCE BASED ON A.S.H.R.A.E. 52.1-1992 TEST METHOD. CLASSIFIED 

AS A UL CLASS 2 FILTER, ACCORDING TO UL STANDARD 900 AND CAN 4-S111. 

 

MAIN MEDIA FILTER (STAGE 2): 24" X 24" X 6". “HEPA MAX 3000” HIGH EFFICIENCY PARTICULATE AIR FILTER. 

DOP TESTED WITH 0.3 MICROMETER SIZED PARTICLES TO HAVE A MINIMUM EFFICIENCY OF UP TO 95% AND 

EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM EFFICIENCY OF 98% ASHRAE 52.1 TESTED FILTERS. CONSISTS OF A PLEATED MEDIA 

PACK ENCLOSED WITHIN A GALVANIZED STEEL FRAME ASSEMBLY. ULTRA-FINE FIBERGLASS MEDIA FORMED IN A 

SERIES OF PLEATS SEPERATED BY CORRUGATED ALUMINUN DIVIDERS TO MAINTAIN UNIFORM SPACING 

BETWEEN EACH PLEAT FOR OPTIMAL AIRFLOW. CLASSIFFIED CLASS 2 ACCORDING TO U.L. STANDARD 900 AND IS 

CLASSIFIED MERV 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASHRAE STANDARD 52.2. FOR INSTALLATION SAFETY, TOTAL 

WEIGHT NOT TO EXCEED 16 LBS. 

 

GAS-PHASE EXTRACTOR (STAGES 3&4): ONE 24" X 24" X 4", “MULTISORB 3000” BLENDED GAS PHASE 

EXTRACTOR. 50/50 RESPIRATOR GRADE ACTIVATED CARBON GRANUALS EFFECT FOR REMOVAL OF HIGH WEIGHT 

MOLECULAR GASES WITHIN DIESEL EXHAUST (VOC’S, HYDROCARBONS, BENZENE, OCTANE, METHANOL AND 

MORE) AND POTASSIUM PERMANGANATE FOR REMOVAL OF LIGHT WEIGHT MOLECULAR GASES (SULFUR DIOXIDE, 

NITROGEN DIOXIDE, FORMALDEHYDE AND MORE). EACH FILTER IS CONSTRUCTED WITHIN A 24ga METAL FRAME 

WITH INTERNAL "HONEYCOMB" CONTAINMENT STRUCTURE. 50/50 BLEND EQUATES TO 14 LBS EACH. FOR 

INSTALLATION SAFETY, TOTAL WEIGHT NOT TO EXCEED 28 LBS. 

 

CABINET CONSTRUCTION: 18 & 16 GAUGE, ALL WELDED STEEL CONSTRUCTION. 25" X 26" X 28" CUSTOM GRAY 

POWDER COAT PAINT FINISH. TWO HINGED ACCESS PANELS: ONE, TO THE FILTER BANK AND THE OTHER TO THE 

MOTOR/BLOWER UNIT. A "DWYER" MAGNEHELIC STATIC PRESSURE GAGE, ALLOWS USER TO VISUALLY CHECK ON 

THE STATUS OF THE FILTER BANK. FOUR HORIZONTAL & ADJUSTABLE AIRFLOW GRILLS. "QUICK LATCH" FILTER 

COMPARTMENT WHICH IS CAPABLE OF HOLDING UP TO 15" OF FILTRATION! 

 

ELECTRICAL: 3/4 H.P., 1725 RPM, 115 VOLT SINGLE PHASE ELECTRIC MOTOR, 13.6 F.L. AMP., RESILIENT MOUNT, 

AUTOMATIC THERMAL PROTECTION. ELECTRIC MOTOR, RESILIENT MOUNT. ALL MOTORS ARE UL APPROVED. 

OPTIONS: UNITS AVAILABLE AT 230 VOLT, SINGLE PHASE, 6.8 F.L. AMP, ADD $52 EA. UNIT, 230 VOLT (SINGLE PHASE) 

MOTOR USABLE AT 208 VOLT. 7.0 F.L. AMP. ADD $95 EA UNIT, THREE PHASE 208-230 VOLT, 3.6 F.L. AMP, ADD $195 EA. 

UNIT;  TO BASE QUOTE. 

 

BLOWER: CONTINENTAL CENTRIFUGAL IMPELLER AND FUNNEL CONE. NON-METAL & CHEMICALLY RESISTANT. 
 

AVEC CONTROL PANEL: UL 508 CERTIFIED CUSTOM “AUTOMATIC VEHICLE EXHAUST CONTROL”, MULTI-CIRCUIT 

AUTOMATIC RESET TIMER CONTROL. TWO CIRCUIT CONFIGURATIONS RATED AT 20 AMPS PER. TIMING RANGE OF .1 

TO 120 MIN. ENCLOSED WITHIN A NEMA-4 RATED ENCLOSURE, NECESSARY FOR APPLICATIONS WHERE WATER IS 

PRESENT (WASHING OF VEHICLES).  MANUAL THREE POSITION SWITCH FOR: AUTO MODE, SYSTEM OFF & SYSTEM 

RUN OVERRIDE. LED "OPERATING" LIGHT.  

 

AUTOMATIC ACTIVATION SWITCHES: (SEE ENCLOSURES) PHOTO ELECTRIC EYES ACTIVATE SYSTEM UPON 

VEHICLE MOVEMENT (OUTDOOR RANGES OF UP TO 200’) AND MAGNETIC DOOR SWITCHES (ONE PER OVERHEAD 

DOOR). 

 

 
INSTALLATION: “TURN KEY” AN ADDITIONAL CHARGE MAY APPLY IF THE LOCATION OF INSTALLATION DOES NOT 

HAVE SUFFICIENT ELECTRICAL CAPACITY TO INSTALL THE AIRVAC 911®, SYSTEM. (E.G.- 1 OPEN 20 AMP BREAKER 

PER UNIT + 1 FOR THE CONTROL PANEL). DUE TO THE FLUCTUATION OF REQUIREMENTS BOTH LOCALLY AND WITHIN 

EACH STATE, THE ABOVE PRICING DOES NOT INCLUDE: SEISMIC OR VIBRATION MOUNTING HARDWARE, LOW 

VOLTAGE WIRING WITHIN CONDUIT, PAINTING OF CONDUIT ETC. OR THE COST OF ANY PERMITS THAT MAY BE 

REQUIRED UPON INSTALLATION. PLEASE REFERENCE OUR “STANDARD INSTALLATION DESCRIPTION” FOR DETAILS. 

NON GSA SCHEDULE ITEM. 43



 
The World Leader In Engine Exhaust Removal 

  Systems for the Fire and EMS Industry 
 

 

P.O. Box 517 • Dover, NH 03821-0517 • Toll Free 800-540-7264 • Tel 603-743-4332 • Fax 603-743-3111 • www.airvac911.com 

UPDATED PROPOSAL – AIRVAC 911® ENGINE EXHAUST REMOVAL SYSTEM 
THE SALE OF "AIR VAC-911"®, ENGINE EXHAUST AIR FILTRATION SYSTEM, BY AIR VACUUM 

CORPORATION OF DOVER N.H., FOR REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS EMISSIONS FROM FIRE, RESCUE, 

TRUCKING, AND OTHER HEAVY EQUIPMENT FLOOR AREAS. 

 

July 7, 2015 

Captain Keith Castillo 

Paradise Fire Department (1st Station) 

767 Birch St. 

Paradise, CA 95969 

530/521-3032 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  FREIGHT: FOB Origin,      TERMS: 1/2 Payment with the order & final payment prior to 

release..   Lead-Time 8 to 10 weeks.        Buyer is responsible for all permit fees, State/local 

licensing fees and applicable taxes related to the purchase of product, shipping and installation or must 

provide all necessary tax-exempt certificates; state, local and/or county to Air Vacuum Corporation.   

  Please contact your sales rep for installation information and pricing.    Governmental Purchases 

please consult your sales rep for GSA price list. Pricing valid for 90 days 

 
 

 
 

 

GS-07F-0437M MEETS 2013 EDITION NFPA 1500 9-1.5, OSHA, NIOSH, FEMA & MORE 

  

 

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTALS

AIR VAC-911 EXHAUST REMOVAL SYSTEM - Single Ph. 115V 2 $3,399.00 $6,798.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER PACK (4-Stage Filter Pack, "Main Filters") 2 $375.00 $750.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER GAUGE (Min. one per building section) 1 $115.00 $115.00

UL 508A CERTIFIED CONTROL PANEL - AVEC-2C 1 $795.00 $795.00

ACTIVATION PACKAGE - PB30TK 200' PHOTO EYE  & 2 $235.00 $470.00

N505AUTM/STX01 TRACK MOUNTED DOOR SWITCH 4 $42.00 $168.00

PREFILTERS (12 Per Box/Case) 12 $8.00 $96.00

*ESTIMATED INSTALLATION "TURN-KEY" & DELIVERED 2 $1,995.00 $3,990.00

*“Non-Schedule Item” $13,182.00

44



 
The World Leader In Engine Exhaust Removal 

  Systems for the Fire and EMS Industry 
 

 

P.O. Box 517 • Dover, NH 03821-0517 • Toll Free 800-540-7264 • Tel 603-743-4332 • Fax 603-743-3111 • www.airvac911.com 

PROPOSAL – AIRVAC 911® ENGINE EXHAUST REMOVAL SYSTEM 
THE SALE OF "AIR VAC-911"®, ENGINE EXHAUST AIR FILTRATION SYSTEM, BY AIR VACUUM 

CORPORATION OF DOVER N.H., FOR REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS EMISSIONS FROM FIRE, RESCUE, 

TRUCKING, AND OTHER HEAVY EQUIPMENT FLOOR AREAS. 

 

July 7, 2015 

Captain Keith Castillo 

Paradise Fire Department (2nd Station) 

767 Birch St. 

Paradise, CA 95969 

530/521-3032 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  FREIGHT: FOB Origin,      TERMS: 1/2 Payment with the order & final payment prior to 

release..   Lead-Time 8 to 10 weeks.        Buyer is responsible for all permit fees, State/local 

licensing fees and applicable taxes related to the purchase of product, shipping and installation or must 

provide all necessary tax-exempt certificates; state, local and/or county to Air Vacuum Corporation.   

  Please contact your sales rep for installation information and pricing.    Governmental Purchases 

please consult your sales rep for GSA price list. Pricing valid for 90 days 

 
 

 
 

 

GS-07F-0437M MEETS 2013 EDITION NFPA 1500 9-1.5, OSHA, NIOSH, FEMA & MORE 

 
 

 

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTALS

AIR VAC-911 EXHAUST REMOVAL SYSTEM - Single Ph. 115V 1 $3,399.00 $3,399.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER PACK (4-Stage Filter Pack, "Main Filters") 1 $375.00 $375.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER GAUGE (Min. one per building section) 1 $115.00 $115.00

UL 508A CERTIFIED CONTROL PANEL - AVEC-2C 1 $795.00 $795.00

ACTIVATION PACKAGE - PB30TK 200' PHOTO EYE  & 2 $235.00 $470.00

N505AUTM/STX01 TRACK MOUNTED DOOR SWITCH 2 $42.00 $84.00

PREFILTERS (12 Per Box/Case) 12 $8.00 $96.00

*ESTIMATED INSTALLATION "TURN-KEY" & DELIVERED 1 $1,995.00 $1,995.00

*“Non-Schedule Item” $7,329.00

45



   

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Compensation 

 

 

 

46



  
The World Leader In Engine Exhaust Removal 

                        Systems for the Fire and EMS Industry 
 
 

P.O. Box 517 • Dover, NH 03821-0517 • Toll Free 800-540-7264 • Tel 603-743-4332 • Fax 603-743-3111 • www.airvac911.com • Email: sales@airvacuumcorporation.com 
 

VISIT US ON FACEBOOK 

ORDER AGREEMENT 

 
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTALS

AIR VAC-911 EXHAUST REMOVAL SYSTEM - Single Ph. 115V 3 $3,399.00 $10,197.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER PACK (4-Stage Filter Pack, "Main Filters") 3 $375.00 $1,125.00

AIR VAC-911 FILTER GAUGE (Min. one per building section) 2 $115.00 $230.00
UL 508A CERTIFIED CONTROL PANEL - AVEC-2C 2 $795.00 $1,590.00
ACTIVATION PACKAGE - PB030TK 200' PHOTO EYE (set) & 4 $235.00 $940.00

N505ATM/ST TRACK MOUNTED DOOR SWITCH 6 $42.00 $252.00

CASE OF 12 PREFILTERS (Change on dates indicated below) 24 $8.00 $192.00
*TURN-KEY INSTALLATION AND DELIVERY 3 $1,995.00 $5,985.00

$20,511.00
 

  FREIGHT: FOB Origin,      TERMS: 1/2 Payment with the order & final payment prior to release.  
  Lead-Time 8 to 10 weeks.        Buyer is responsible for all applicable taxes/permits/fees/licensing related to the purchase & installation of 

product, shipping and installation or must provide all necessary tax-exempt certificates; state, local and/or county to Air Vacuum Corporation.   
  All sales are final   

 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

This commitment form is to serve as Client's written authorization for  AIR 
VACUUM CORPORATION  to perform services and/or contract with The Paradise 
Fire Department for the above described items and installation (if 
applicable). Client’s signature also indicates understanding of estimates, 
prices, terms and liability to AIR VACUUM CORPORATION for said items and 
services. Alterations or revisions of above specifications involving extra 
costs will be executed only upon additional written orders. Any condition 
not stated herein, or terms inconsistent with Purchase Order will not be 
binding on the seller. Returns shall only be accepted with prior written 
approval and subject to a 20% restocking fee. 
 
ACCEPTED______________________(Signature)  
 
Name (print) ____________________ 
 
DATE__________________________        
 
PO/ORDER# ___________________________________ 
 

Please sign and date this form to initiate your order. You may fax this form back to 603-743-3111 

DATE: 8/26/2015 
PHONE: (530) 521-3032 
FAX:  
Project name/number: 

Fire Captain Keith Castillo 
Paradise Fire Department 
767 Birch Street 
Paradise, CA  95969 

TThhee  AAIIRRVVAACC  991111®®  SSyysstteemm  iiss  PPrroovviiddeedd  WWiitthh  aa  FFIIVVEE  YYEEAARR  WWAARRRRAANNTTYY  OOnn  AALLLL  CCoommppoonneennttss  ((eexxcclluuddiinngg  ccoonnssuummaabbllee  ffiilltteerrss))

MADE IN THE USA

ENTER “SHIP TO” ADDRESS 
IN THIS BOX: 

 

47



 

EXHIBIT “C” – Insurance Requirements 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property, which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability Coverage (occurrence form CG 
0001). 
 

2. Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed.  1/87) Coverage Automobile 
Liability, code 1 (any auto). 

 
3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance. 
 

4. Errors and Omissions liability insurance appropriate to the Contractors profession. 
Architects’ and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

 
Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
Contractor shall maintain limits no less than: 
 

1. General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence 
limit. 
 

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 

3. Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 
 

4. Errors and omissions liability: $1,000,000 per claim & $1,000,000 aggregate. 
 
Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions exceeding $25,000 must be declared to and approved by 
the Town. At the option of the Town, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles 
or self- insured retentions as respects the Town, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; 
or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the Town guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 
 
Other Insurance Provisions 
 
The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 
 

1. The Town, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as insured 
as respects: liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor. 

48



 

 
2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance respects the Town, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Town, its officers, officials, 
employees or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

 
3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the Town. 

 
Acceptability of Insurers 
 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, 
unless otherwise acceptable to the Town. 
 
Verification of Coverage 
 
Contractor shall furnish the Town with original certificates and amendatory endorsements 
effecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the 
Town or on other than the Town’s forms provided, those endorsements conform to Town 
requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the Town 
before work commences. The Town on reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of 
all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required. 

 

 

49



INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$PRO-
POLICY LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
AUTOS AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
WC STATU- OTH-
TORY LIMITS ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2010/05)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 1/07/2014

People's United Ins. Agency NH
501 Islington Street
3rd Fl.
Portsmouth, NH  03801

Laurie McIntire
603 427-7529

laurie.mcintire@peoples.com

Air Vacuum Corporation
P.O. Box 517
Dover, NH  03821-0517

The Cincinnati Specialty Underw
Cincinnati Insurance Co.
Hanover Insurance Co
Citizens Ins Co of America

10677
22292
31534

A
X

X
Blanket Addl Insured
er Written Contract

X

CSU0015455 01/01/2014 01/01/2015 1,000,000
100,000
1,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

D

X
X X

ABV0470673 01/01/2014 01/01/2015 1,000,000

B X X EXS0130004 01/01/2014 01/01/2015 3,000,000

C

Y

WHV4028279 01/01/2014 01/01/2015 X
500,000

500,000
500,000

Workers Compensation Excludes Thomas Vitko. 
Confirmation of Coverage

Air Vac
PO Box 0517
Dover, NH  03821-0517

1 of 1
#S465102/M465068

AIRVAClient#: 31132

LRR
1 of 1

#S465102/M465068


50



1 

 

     
     TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 3(f) 

 
ORIGINATED BY: Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
                                              
SUBJECT:                 Professional Services Agreement with Lauren Gill for Town Manager  
             Services for the Town of Paradise  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  (1)  Approve the amended and restated professional 
services agreement with Lauren Gill for Town Manager Services with an expiration date of June 
30, 2020. 
 
After a successful performance evaluation of the Town Manager by the Town Council, the 
Council agreed to extend the current agreement until June 30, 2020.  No other changes were 
made to the agreement. As such, Section 8 of the agreement authorized the salary increase 
included in the current budget. 
    
 

51



                                                                                         of  6 1 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made on September 1, 2015 between the TOWN OF 

PARADISE, a municipal corporation of the State of California, (TOWN) and Lauren M. 

Gill, (EMPLOYEE). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, the TOWN and EMPLOYEE desire to enter into Agreement 

relating to her employment as the Town Manager; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the TOWN to provide certain benefits, establish 

certain conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of EMPLOYEE; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the TOWN to: 

 

  Secure and retain the services of the EMPLOYEE and to provide   

  inducement for her to remain in such employment; 

 

  Establish a basis for good working relationships, to avoid possible   

  misunderstandings, and to provide special benefits to the EMPLOYEE in  

  recognition of the unique nature of her position; 

 

  Make possible full work productivity by assuring EMPLOYEE’s morale  

  and peace of mind with respect to future security; 

 

  Act as a deterrent against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on  

  the part of the EMPLOYEE; and 

 

Provide a just means for terminating EMPLOYEE’s services at such time 

as she may be unable to fully discharge her duties due to illness or 

disability or when the TOWN may otherwise desire to terminate her 

employment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Lauren M. Gill desires to accept employment as the Town Manager 

of the Town of Paradise; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 

contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 

 

SECTION 1: DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. The duties, responsibilities and authority of the EMPLOYEE, shall be 

those specified in Chapter 2.04 of the Paradise Municipal Code and such 

52



                                                                                         of  6 2 

other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Town 

Council shall assign. 

 

B. The Town Council agrees to direct its concerns and communications to the 

administration through the Town Manager.  The EMPLOYEE agrees to 

respond promptly to all inquiries from the Mayor and the Town Council.  

Individual inquiries of council members regarding question of fact, 

clarification of policies and requests for services shall be responded to 

promptly by EMPLOYEE. 

 

SECTION 2: TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

 

A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the Town Council to terminate the services of EMPLOYEE at 

any time as an at-will employee, subject only to the provisions set forth in 

Section 4, Paragraphs A and B of this Agreement. 

 

B. Nothing in the Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the EMPLOYEE to resign at any time her position with the 

TOWN, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 4, Paragraph C 

of this Agreement. 

 

C. EMPLOYEE agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of TOWN for the 

term of the Agreement and to neither seek, accept, or to become employed 

by any other employer that would have a detrimental impact on her duties 

and responsibilities as Town Manager for the Town of Paradise.  The term 

“employed” shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, 

or consulting performed on EMPLOYEE’s time off. 

D.  

(1) It shall be the responsibility of the EMPLOYEE to notify the Council 

of expiration of this Agreement.  Notice of the expiration shall be 

given to the Council six (6) months prior to the expiration.  Failure of 

EMPLOYEE to give such notice shall cause this Agreement to expire 

on its own terms; 

 

(2) After receiving notice under Section 2D(1), the Town Council may 

give EMPLOYEE notice of its intent to renew this Agreement.  If the 

Council does not give such notice, this Agreement shall terminate by 

its own terms. The Council shall notify EMPLOYEE of its intent to 

renew this Agreement ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of this 

Agreement;  

 

SECTION 3:  SUSPENSION & REMOVAL 

 

 After providing the EMPLOYEE with a written notice stating the Council’s 

intention to remove her, at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of her removal, 

53



                                                                                         of  6 3 

the Town Council may suspend EMPLOYEE from duty, but her compensation shall 

continue until the effective date of her removal.  Council may suspend EMPLOYEE in 

accordance with the provisions of the Paradise Municipal Code 2.04.240(C).  

EMPLOYEE may exercise her right for a public hearing in accordance with the Paradise 

Municipal Code 2.04.240(B) or California Government Code Section 54957.  In the 

event of misconduct, the EMPLOYEE shall be removed in accordance with the Paradise 

Municipal Code 2.04.240.  

 

SECTION 4:  TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 

 

A. Should TOWN elect to exercise its right to terminate EMPLOYEE 

without cause, then TOWN  shall give at forty-five (45) days advance, 

written notice to her. TOWN shall have the right to separate 

EMPLOYEE immediately from TOWN service, with the payment of 

cash severance pay in a lump sum equal to six (6) month’s salary and pay 

for unused annual vacation leave, administrative leave, and sick leave in 

accordance with the Town Personnel System Rules or any applicable 

employee Memorandum of Understanding, or in the TOWN’s  option, 

require EMPLOYEE to continue to perform services under this 

Agreement until the forty-five (45) day period has elapsed. 

 

B. In the event TOWN, at any time during the term of this Agreement, 

reduces the salary or other financial benefits of EMPLOYEE in a greater 

percentage than an applicable across-the-board reduction for all employees 

of the TOWN; or if the Council refuses, following written notice 

requesting compliance with any other provision benefiting EMPLOYEE 

herein; or if EMPLOYEE resigns following suggestion, whether formal 

or informal, by the Town Council that she resign, then the EMPLOYEE 

may, at her option, deem the Agreement to be involuntarily terminated at 

the date of such reduction or such refusal to comply with the meaning and 

context of this Agreement, and the severance pay provision under 

Paragraph A of this Section shall apply.  

 

C. In the event EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns her position with the 

TOWN before expiration of the above term of employment, 

EMPLOYEE shall give the TOWN forty-five (45) days written notice in 

advance or such advance notice as may be otherwise mutually agreed 

upon.  In case of such voluntary resignation, the TOWN shall have no 

obligation to pay the severance pay referred to in Paragraph A above. 

 

SECTION 5: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

 

A. The Town Council shall review and evaluate the performance of the 

EMPLOYEE at least once annually.  The review and evaluation shall be 

in accordance with the duties outlined in Section 1 and specific criteria 

developed jointly by the Town Council and EMPLOYEE.   The criteria 

54



                                                                                         of  6 4 

may be added to or deleted from as the Town Council may, from time to 

time, determine in consultation with the EMPLOYEE.  Further, the Town 

Council shall provide an adequate opportunity for the EMPLOYEE to 

discuss her evaluation with the Town Council, and the results of such 

evaluations shall be reduced to writing and agreed to by both parties. 

 

B. Every three (3) months, the Town Council and the EMPLOYEE shall 

define such goals and performance objectives which they determine 

necessary for the proper operation of the TOWN and for the attainment of 

the Town Council’s policy objectives.  Such goals and objectives shall be 

reduced to writing, and a relative priority shall be established among the 

goals and objectives.  They shall generally be attainable within the time 

limitations as specified, and the annual operating and capital budgets and 

appropriations provided. 

 

C. In effecting the provisions of this Section, the Town Council and the 

EMPLOYEE mutually agree to abide by the provisions of applicable law, 

ordinances, resolutions and current policies of the TOWN. 

 

SECTION 6: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

A. The TOWN agrees to budget and pay for the professional dues and 

subscriptions of the EMPLOYEE necessary for her continuation and full 

participation in national, regional, state and local associations and 

organizations necessary and desirable for her continued professional 

advancement and for the good of the TOWN at a cost not to exceed 

budget allocations approved by the Town Council. 

 

B. The TOWN agrees to budget and pay for the travel, subsistence and other 

expenses for professional, business and official travel, courses, seminars, 

conferences and occasions adequate to continue to professional 

development of the EMPLOYEE and to adequately pursue necessary 

official business and other functions for the good of the TOWN.  These 

expenses shall not exceed budget allocations approved by the Town 

Council. 

 

SECTION 7: HOURS OF WORK 

 

A. The minimum workweek of the EMPLOYEE shall be forty (40) hours, 

plus any additional work time reasonably required to discharge the duties 

and responsibilities of the Town Manager.  Because the EMPLOYEE 

will devote a great deal of time outside normal office hours to the business 

of the TOWN, and because flexibility in hours worked and work schedule 

benefit both the TOWN and EMPLOYEE, the EMPLOYEE has some 

discretion as to her work schedule and hours worked. 

 

55



                                                                                         of  6 5 

B. In further recognition of the fact that the EMPLOYEE must devote a 

great deal of time outside normal business hours to the business of the 

TOWN, she shall be entitled to administrative leave in accordance with 

the provisions of the Memorandums of Understanding applicable to 

Management Employees. 

 

SECTION 8: SALARY AND OTHER BENEFITS 

 

A. Salary.   The TOWN shall pay EMPLOYEE for her services rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement; an annual base salary at Step B of the Town 

Manager Salary Schedule attached as Exhibit "A" payable in installments 

at the same time as other employees are paid.  EMPLOYEE shall be 

eligible for additional Annual Merit Step Increases, beginning July 1, 

2016, pursuant to the criteria in the Town’s Personnel Rules & 

Regulations Policy Number 250, based on Exhibit “A”.   

  

B. Indemnification.  The TOWN shall indemnify and defend EMPLOYEE 

in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code 

Sections 825 et seq. 995 et seq., and related statutes. 

 

C. Employee Benefits.  The TOWN shall provide EMPLOYEE with the 

benefits shown in the attached Exhibit “B”. 
 

 

SECTION 9: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2016 and shall terminate 

on June 30, 2020, unless extended by mutual agreement between the 

Town and EMPLOYEE. 

 

B. The provisions herein shall constitute the entire Agreement between the 

parties. 

 

C. Nothing shall restrict the ability of the Council and EMPLOYEE to 

mutually, and in writing, amend or adjust the terms of this Agreement.  

EMPLOYEE reserves the right to discuss the terms or termination of this 

Agreement with the Town Council as a whole in either closed or open 

regular sessions, as state law allows and as the EMPLOYEE deems 

appropriate. 

 

56



                                                                                         of  6 6 

D. EMPLOYEE agrees to maintain a residence within ten (10) miles of 

Town Hall during the term of this employment. 

 

E. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is 

held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Agreement, or portions thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be 

affected, and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

F. This Agreement is personal to the parties and shall not be assigned. 

 

G. This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements between the parties, It 

contains the sole and exclusive agreement of the parties and correctly 

states the rights, duties and obligations of the parties.  Any oral or written 

representations or negotiations not expressly set forth in this Agreement 

are of no force or effect.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Paradise has caused this Agreement to 

be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and the Employee has signed and 

executed this Agreement, both in duplicate, the date and year first above written. 

 

 

             

Greg Bolin, Mayor    Lauren M. Gill, Town Manager 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

        

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

       

DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney 

57



Hours/

Week

 A 

Step 

 B 

Step 

 C 

Step 

 D 

Step 

 E 

Step 

 F 

Step 

TOWN MANAGER

TOWN MANAGER

HOURLY 40 51.71            54.30            57.02            59.87            62.86            66.00            

BIWEEKLY 80.00 4,137.00       4,344.00       4,561.60       4,789.60       5,028.80       5,280.00       

MONTHLY 173.33 8,963.50       9,412.00       9,883.47       10,377.47     10,895.73     11,440.00     

ANNUAL 2080.00 107,562.00  112,944.00  118,601.60  124,529.60  130,748.80  137,280.00  

TOWN OF PARADISE

SALARY PAY PLAN FY 15/16

Position 

Title

TOWN MANAGER

Exhibit "A"

58



EXHIBIT “B” 

TOWN MANAGER BENEFITS 

 

In accordance with the current Management Group MOU, dated May 12th, 2015, 

benefits under the Employee Agreement shall be as follows:  

 Vacation with 15+ years of service = 5 weeks, maximum 3X annual accrual. 

 Sick leave accrual = 8 hours per month, maximum accrual 1,500 hours. 

 Holidays = 12 standard + 2 floating holiday. 

 Administrative Leave = 120 hours. 

 Bereavement Leave = 3 days. 

 Long Term Disability Insurance = 2/3 base salary. 

 Life Insurance coverage = 150,000. 

 Dental Insurance =80% (Town) and 20% (Employee) premium share.  Any increase in the 

dental plan premium below 9.99% will be shared 80(employer)/20(employee). Any 

increase amount for the dental plan premium rate above 10% will be shared 50/50.   

 Vision Insurance = 80% (Town) and 20% (Employee) premium share.   

 Health Insurance= Town agrees to pay monthly a portion of the premiums for a medical 

plan, up to, but not exceeding the following amounts.  Town Share Cap:   

    Employee   $433.73 

    Employee plus one  $867.45 

    Employee plus two or more $1,127.69 

 PERS Retiree Medical in accordance with PERS Resolution for Management Group. 

 PERS Retirement formula of 2%@55.  Employee pays 100% of employee portion of PERS 

at 7%, and in turn the salary schedule for classification is increased by 7%.  

 Longevity with 15+ years of service = 7.5% of salary. 

 Car/cell allowance = $200 per month. 

 

59



 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: 3(g) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Gina S. Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 

Reviewed by: Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 

Subject: 
 

Quarterly Investment Report 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 
Review and file the 4th Quarter Investment Report for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015; or,  

Alternatives: 
 
Refer the matter back to staff for further development and consideration. 

Background: 
 
Attached is a report on the Town’s cash and investments for the quarter ended June 30, 2015.  
 
A US Bank checking account is currently being used for payroll, accounts payable and other 
operating purposes.  Most accounts payable disbursements are drawn through checks, and 
most payroll disbursements are processed through direct deposit. Deposits are fully 
collateralized and after reserve requirements, provide an earnings credit rate of 0.50% up to the 
amount of monthly fees. As the earnings credit rate is currently higher than the yield provided by 
LAIF, staff is currently maximizing the earnings potential in this account.    
 
The Town uses the State of California managed Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) for 
investment of cash in excess of immediately needed operating capital. With same day liquidity 
and comparable yields, LAIF is currently the best investment option for the Town. Funds are 
able to be transferred electronically through phone authorization between LAIF and the Town 
checking account. The Town will continue to research other investment options that match 
LAIF’s liquidity and security in order to improve investment yield.  
 
In June of 2011, the Town established an irrevocable trust to begin funding the future 
obligations associated with retiree health as required by GASB 45. The funds are being 
managed by Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC) and can only be used for the payment of 
retiree health benefits.  
 
The Town establishes escrow funds at the start of each new lease. The escrow fund is drawn 
down to zero through the process of purchasing equipment against the lease. Interest is 
accrued on any unspent escrow balance. The “other” investment type represents these 
available escrow funds as well as petty cash balances. As of June 30, 2015, there were $41,811 
in unspent escrow funds as the Town was in the process of purchasing approved 2014/15 
budgeted equipment. All remaining equipment was purchased and the escrow account was 
closed in August 2015.  

 
 

60



Quarterly Investment Report 

September 8, 2015 

2 
 

 
Discussion 

 
The increased investment balance as of June 30, 2015 as compared to June 30, 2014 indicates 
improvement to the Town’s overall cash liquidity and reserves. The attached graph illustrates 
the trend of increasing cash balances over the recent fiscal year ends. Last fiscal year the Town 
needed a $2.7 million TRAN which was funded October 10, 2014. This year the Town will fund a 
TRAN of $2.5 million toward the end of September 2015. The TRAN will be repaid in May of 
2016 and will be sufficient to fund operations and payroll for the remainder of the 2015/16 fiscal 
year.  
 
The GASB 45 trust investment managed by SISC experienced a 1.02% loss on investment 
during the 4th quarter of 2014/15. The return for the entire fiscal year was 0.70% The economy 
is picking up but interest rates remain historically low. Globally investors continue to worry about 
weak world markets. Long term, SISC has been successful with its allocation model of 
approximately 60% equity and 40% fixed income. 
 
In December 2014, the Town Treasurer directed the Trustee, Wells Fargo Bank, to invest the 
reserve funds of the Paradise Redevelopment 2006 Note and the Paradise Redevelopment 
2009 Bond in accordance with the Town’s investment policy. The reserve funds had been 
yielding less than 0.01% in mutual funds. The reserve funds are now invested in CD’s which will 
yield between 0.45% and 0.55% over a one year period. The reserve funds for the Pension 
Obligation Bond will be invested in September 2015 when the Town makes the payment for the 
2015/16 fiscal year. While these investments and balances are not part of the Town’s idle or 
operating cash, the yield will ultimately lessen the amount the Town will be required to 
contribute in future debt service payments.  

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 
 
Isolating the loss from the GASB 45 trust, the Town earned $4,177.75 for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2015. That is compared to $3,358.57 for the quarter ended June 30, 2014. Again, 
isolating the GASB 45 return, the Town realized three basis points more in yield compared to a 
year ago, and had about $641,000 more in average balances invested. Year to date this fiscal 
year, the Town earned $22,787.27 after isolating the GASB 45 return. Last fiscal year to date, 
the Town had earned $9,840.23.   

 
 

61



TOWN OF PARADISE

QUARTERLY SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS 

For Quarter Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Type Yield Book Value Market Value* Yield Book Value Market Value* Net Change

US Bank Checking 0.50% 1,141,240.97  1,141,240.97       0.50% 1,198,898.02  1,198,898.02       (57,657.05)       

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Savings 0.29% 3,412,590.71  3,413,873.77       0.23% 2,755,797.69  2,756,620.98       656,793.02      

SISC GASB 45 Trust B Various -1.02% 67,670.09       67,670.09            3.91% 65,992.70       65,992.70            1,677.39          

Fiscal Agents & Petty Cash Other 0.06% 43,760.78       43,760.78            1,950.00         1,950.00              41,810.78        

Totals 4,665,262.55  4,666,545.61       4,022,638.41  4,023,461.70       642,624.14      

Total Quarterly Earnings on accrual basis 3,477.74         5,841.03         

Total Annual Earnings (July 1st - June 30th) 24,597.46       19,843.53       

* Market Value determined by LAIF

Reserve Funds Invested

Paradise RDA Note 2006 31,000.00$                      

Paradise RDA Bond 2009 340,000.00$                    

371,000.00$                    

Issuer FDIC Number Yield Settlement Date Maturity Date Type Investment Earnings

Bank of Baroda 33681 0.450% 12/09/14 12/09/15 CD 123,000.00     553.50                 

Everbank 34775 0.550% 12/16/14 12/16/15 CD 248,000.00     1,364.00              

371,000.00     1,917.50              

For Quarter Ended June 30, 2015 For Quarter Ended June 30, 2014

In compliance with the California Code Section 53646; the Treasurer of the Town of Paradise herby certifies that sufficient 
investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the Town's budgeted expenditure requirements for the 
next six months. 
 
Investments in the report meet the requirements of the Town of Paradise's adopted investment policy. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Gina S. Will 
Finance Director/Town Treasurer 

62



 -    

 1,000  

 2,000  

 3,000  

 4,000  

 5,000  

 6,000  

Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 

In
 T

h
o

u
s
a

n
d

s
 

Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 

Series1 3,447  1,952  3,852  2,591  2,701  357  3,274  2,890  1,390  2,371  4,373  4,023  2,030  3,375  5,762  4,665  

Town of Paradise 
Investment Balances with Trendline 

September 2011 - June 2015 

63



Sept. 30th Dec. 31st March 31st June 30th 

2010/11 2,881,720  5,034,579  2,417,553  2,910,472  

2011/12 3,446,611  1,952,141  3,852,176  2,591,170  

2012/13 2,701,104  357,101  3,274,156  2,890,429  

2013/14 1,389,733  2,370,880  4,372,599  4,022,638  

2014/15 2,029,885  3,375,031  5,764,007  4,665,263  

 -    

 1,000,000  

 2,000,000  

 3,000,000  

 4,000,000  

 5,000,000  

Town of Paradise 
Investment Balances 
2010/11 - 2014/15 

64



TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

        Agenda No. (3h) 
 

ORIGINATED BY: Anthony Lindsey, Building Official/Fire Marshal 
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Introducing an Ordinance Adding Chapter 15.14 of the Town of 

Paradise Municipal Code Relating to Expedited Permitting Procedure for 
Small Residential Rooftop Solar Systems 

 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: Conduct the duly noticed and scheduled public hearing 
concerning this agenda item. Upon conclusion of the public hearing adopt either the 
recommended action or an alternative action. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a MOTION TO: 
 
1.    Waive the first reading of Town Ordinance No. ____ and read by title only (roll call vote); 
AND 
 
2.  Introduce Town Ordinance No. ____, "An Ordinance Adding Paradise Municipal Code 
Chapter 15.14 of the Paradise Municipal Code Relating to Expedited Permitting Procedure for 
Small Residential Rooftop Solar Systems"; OR 
 
3.     Adopt an alternative directive to town staff. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Section 65850.5(a) of the California Government Code provides policies of the State to promote 
and encourage the installation and use of solar energy systems by limiting obstacles to their use 
and by minimizing the permitting costs of such systems.  In furtherance of that objective, 
Section 65850.5(g)(1) of the California Government Code requires that every city, county, or 
city and county shall adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting 
process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems. 
 
The Town currently expedites the review of such applications by reviewing and issuing 
applications for photovoltaic solar systems permits through its expedited photovoltaic solar 
system program.  The Town also expedites all photovoltaic solar inspection requests. The Town, 
then, already expedites the review of such applications.   
 
The Town, however, needs to adopt an ordinance mandated by Government Code Section 
65850.5(g)(1), which the attached ordinance is intended to satisfy. The ordinance codifies the 

 

65



Council Agenda Summary 2 September 8, 2015 

requirements of Section 65850.5(g)(1), such as accepting and approving applications, directing 
the Town’s Building Official to develop a checklist of all requirements with which small rooftop 
solar energy systems shall comply to be eligible for expedited review, and authorizes the 
Building Official to administratively approve such applications. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
If adopted by the Town Council, the proposed amendments would accomplish the following 
objectives: 
 

 Establish new definitions of words and phrases pertaining to residential rooftop solar 
systems which will be added to Section 15.14 [Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy 
Systems] of the Paradise Municipal Code. 

 

 Develop a checklist to be used by solar applicants with which small rooftop solar systems 
shall comply to be eligible for expedited review.  

 

 Compliance with Section 65850.5(g)(1) of the California Government Code requiring every 
city and county to adopt an ordinance that expedites the permitting process for small 
residential rooftop solar systems.  

 
Town staff has determined, and the Town Attorney has concurred, that the nature of the 
proposed text amendments are sufficiently minor in nature and there is no possibility the 
adoption and implementation of the amendments would result in a direct and significantly 
adverse effect upon the environment.  Therefore, the proposed amendments can be found to 
be exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15061 (General Rule Exemption). 
 
Staff has developed the attached ordinance document that, if adopted by the Town Council, 
would amend the Town’s building and construction regulations in order to accomplish the 
objectives outlined above. If deemed necessary by a majority consensus of Town Council 
members present, staff will be prepared to make further changes or additions to the text of the 
attached ordinance. 
 
Town staff has also generated and attached other documents related to this agenda matter, 
including the draft solar checklist and the CEQA Notice of Exemption. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: There is no financial impact associated with the first reading and 
introduction of this ordinance document.  

66



TOWN OF PARADISE 
ORDINANCE NO.    

 
ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 15.14 TO THE PARADISE MUNICIPAL CODE 

RELATING TO EXPEDITED PERMITTING PROCEDURE FOR SMALL RESIDENTIAL 
ROOFTOP SOLAR SYSTEMS 

 
 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that it is the policy of 
the state to promote and encourage the installation and use of solar energy systems by limiting 
obstacles to their use and by minimizing the permitting costs of such systems; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 15.14 is added to the Paradise Municipal Code to read in full as follows: 
  

Chapter 15.14 
 
 SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
 
Sections: 
 
15.14.010 Purpose. 
15.14.020 Definitions. 
15.14.030 Review Process. 
 

       15.14.010  Purpose. 
 

A. California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that every city, county, or city 
and county shall adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting 
process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems. 
 

B. California Government Code Section 65850.5 provides that in developing an expedited 
permitting process, the city, county, or city and county shall develop a checklist of all 
requirements with which small rooftop solar energy systems shall comply to be eligible 
for expedited review.  The building official is hereby authorized and directed to develop 
such checklist.  
 

15.14.020  Definitions. 
 

A. “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” means all of the following: 
 

1. A solar energy system that is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating current 
nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts thermal. 

2. A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, structural, electrical, 
and other building codes as adopted or amended by the town and paragraph (iii) of 
subdivision (c) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 67



3. A solar energy system that is installed on a single or duplex family dwelling. 
4. A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal building 

height as defined by the authority having jurisdiction. 
 

B. “Solar energy system” has the same meaning set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 

 
15.14.030  Review Process. 
 

A. The checklist shall be published on the Town’s internet web site.  An applicant may 
submit the permit application and associated documentation to the Town’s building 
division in person or mailed together with any required permit processing and 
inspection fees.   

 
B. Prior to submitting an application, the applicant shall: 

1. verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of standard 
engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the small 
residential rooftop solar energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, 
seismic, and dead and live loads associated with the installation and the 
maintenance thereof; and 

2. at the applicant’s cost, verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction using 
standard electrical inspection techniques that the existing electrical system including 
existing line, load, ground and bonding wiring as well as main panel and subpanel 
sizes are adequately sized, based on the existing electrical system’s current use, to 
carry all new photovoltaic electrical loads,  

 
C. For a small residential rooftop solar energy system eligible for expedited review, only 

one inspection shall be required, which shall be done in a timely manner.  If a small 
residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent inspection is 
authorized; however the subsequent inspection need not conform to the requirements 
of this subsection. 

 
D. An application that satisfies the information requirements in the checklist, as 

determined by the building official, shall be deemed complete. Upon receipt of an 
incomplete application, the building official shall issue a written correction notice 
detailing all deficiencies in the application and any additional information required to be 
eligible for expedited permit issuance.  

 
E. Upon confirmation by the building official of the application and supporting 

documentation being complete and meeting the requirements of the checklist, the 
building official shall administratively approve the application and issue all required 
permits or authorizations. Such approval shall not include any necessary approval or 
permission by a local utility provider to connect the small residential rooftop energy 
system to the provider’s electricity grid. The applicant is responsible for obtaining such 
approval or permission from the local utility provider. 

 
SECTION 2. The Town Council finds and determines that adoption of this ordinance is 
exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 68



CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 (General Rule Exemption) because there is no possibility that 
such adoption and subsequent enactment will have a significant effect on the environment.  
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of its passage.  
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days after its passage, this ordinance or a summary thereof 
shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated within the 
Town of Paradise along with the names of the members of the Town Council of Paradise voting 
for and against same. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of Butte, State of 
California, on this   day of October, 2015 by the following vote: 
 
       AYES:      
 
       NOES:     
 
   ABSENT:    
 
 ABSTAIN:    
 
       
       __________________________________ 
       Greg Bolin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney  
 

69



Residential Solar Photovoltaic (PV) System Plan 

Submittal Requirements 
1. Submit two (2) sets of plans (minimum 8.5”x11” & maximum 24”x36”) which are drawn to scale (or fully

dimensioned).  Please keep in mind all plans, notes and details shall be clear and legible.

2. Cover sheet with the following information: project address, owners name/address/phone number, name/address

and phone number of contractor and person preparing plans, clear scope of work, sheet index, legend of

symbols, abbreviations and notations used in the drawings.

3. Basic site plan showing the location of the structure, North arrow, equipment, disconnects, inverters and any

other related components of the PV system. (Cover sheet and site plan may be part of the same sheet if

complete and legible; common for small residential lots)

4. Array configuration indicating placement of equipment and modules on the roof including junction boxes and

other related electrical equipment.  Configuration shall also show required fire clearances per the 2013 CA Fire

and Residential Codes (see back of checklist for complete requirements).

5. Electrical single line diagram including:

 Amperage size and location of the main electrical panels and subpanels

 Grounding/bonding conductor sizes/types for structure (main ground, water bonding, gas bonding, etc)

 Equipment grounding conductor size, type and location for circuits and module/rack grounding

 Combiner/junction box locations

 AC/DC disconnect types, sizes and locations

 Conduit sizes/types from the array to the power source

 Inverter string sizing or micro inverter branch circuit details

 Conductor wiring types and sizes, system and solar panel

6. Required signage for panels, disconnects, conduits, junction boxes, etc.  Permanent labels with red background

and white lettering resistant to fading pursuant to CA Electrical Code Article 690.

7. Provide cut sheets for all PV equipment and mounting systems including but not limited to: PV modules, rack

mounting system with complete details, mounting brackets, grounding hardware, module fire rating and

inverters.

8. PV system mounting hardware shall meet minimum Town of Paradise Structural Design Criteria including

snow loading requirements depending on project location.  Minimum roof mount support spacing shall be as

follows unless separate design is submitted by CA licensed engineer:

 0-40 lb snow load: 4ft o.c. spacing

Ground Mount Solar Projects: 

1. Items 1-7 as shown above including a 3rd detailed site plan showing array size, setbacks to structures/property

lines, location of all existing structures on the site, location of new underground utilities, etc.

2. PV system mounting hardware and foundations shall meet minimum Town of Paradise Structural Design

Criteria including snow loading requirements depending on project location.  Foundations shall meet general

engineered practices and general engineered foundation/support tables and calculations may be used if the

calculations include the applicable snow loading.

See Back of Checklist for Amended Solar Requirements in the 2013 California Building Standard Codes 

Effective January 1, 2014 

TOWN OF PARADISE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
BUILDING DIVISION
5555 SKYWAY, PARADISE, CA  95969, (530 ) 872-6291 x123  F AX (530 ) 877-5059 
w ww.townofparadise.com

Onsite Sanitation Building Clearance is required for all ground mount solar applications.3.

70



Solar PV Requirements in the 2013 California Fire, Electrical & Residential Codes 

Wiring/Circuit Installations: 

1. Direct current (DC) conduit, enclosures, raceways, cable assemblies, junction boxes, combiner boxes and

disconnects shall be labeled per the following: 

 Labels shall be reflective, water resistant and can withstand the environment; lettering shall be a minimum

3/8” in height with white on red background.

 Labels shall state, “WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER SOURCE”.

 Labels shall be placed at every service disconnect; also on every DC conduit, raceways, enclosures, etc at

10ft o.c. and within 1ft of turns, bends and penetrations.

2. Conduit, raceways and wiring systems shall be run as close as possible to ridges, hips, valleys, etc; they shall

also be installed in such a manner to limit trip hazards and maximize ventilation opportunities.  DC wiring in

enclosed spaces shall be installed in metallic conduit; conduit shall be run along the bottom of load bearing

members.

3. PV source and output circuits inside a building shall be routed along building structural members where the

members can be observed (accessible attics, etc). If circuits are embedded in areas (not accessible) that are not

covered by PV modules, those areas shall be clearly marked indicating their locations.

4. DC circuits ran inside a building 80 volts or greater shall be protected by a listed arc-fault circuit interrupter.

5. Where multiple inverters are installed and not grouped a clear location directory shall be provided at each AC &

DC disconnect location.

6. FMC ¾” or smaller, MC conduit 1” or smaller or exposed wiring installed across ceiling joists or floor joists

shall be protected by guard strips.

Access & Pathways: 

1. Residential structures shall be designed with a maximum PV array axis of 150ft x 150ft.

 Residential Hip Roof Layouts: Minimum 3ft clear walkway from eave to ridge on side of roof mounted

PV modules. 

 Residential with Single Ridge: Minimum of two (2) 3ft clear walkways from the eave to the ridge on

each roof slope. 

 Residential with Hips & Valleys: Modules installed no closer than 18” to the hip or valley when

modules are installed on each side of the hip/valley.

 All Residential Roofs: Modules shall not be installed within 3ft of the ridge for fire dept. ventilation.

2. Roof access shall be available that doesn’t require placement of ladders over windows, doors, etc and located at

strong points of the building construction that allow unobstructed access.

3. Commercial Access: A minimum 6ft wide clearance shall be provided around the parameter of the roof unless

the longest building axis does not exceed 250ft.

4. Commercial Roof Pathways: Structurally sound centerline pathways shall be provided a minimum of 4ft wide

and 4ft clear to skylights, hatches, standpipes, parapets and/or roof edges.

5. Commercial Smoke Ventilation Requirements:  Arrays shall be no greater than 150ftx150ft in size; a minimum

8ft clear space (see code for alt. clearance between arrays) shall be provided between arrays.

6. Ground Mount Arrays: A minimum 10ft clear “brush-free” area around the array shall be provided.

Fire Rating: 

1. Modules shall be tested, listed and identified with the fire classification based on the specific type of building

construction.  (See California Building Code (CBC) Table 1505.1 for specific classification requirements)

71



72



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: 3(i) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

Subject: 3Core Partnership Investment 

  
 

Council Action Requested: 

1) Authorize the Town Manager to enter into a one year Partnership Investment with 3Core. 

Background: 
3Core is a private, non-profit corporation that works as the economic development planning and 
coordinating agency for the Tri-County region, composed of Butte, Glenn and Tehama counties 
and the nine member cities located therein.  The Town of Paradise has partnered with 3Core in 
the past, however due to budget constraints the Town was forced to opt out of partnership for 
the last few years.  

  
Discussion: 
A partnership with 3Core is a requirement for applying to EDA and other grants which could 
provide funding for a sewer and other projects.   In order to move forward with grant 
applications, the Town would need to enter into a Partnership Investment with 3Core.  Other 
benefits include: 

 Development and annual update of the Comprehensive Economic Development 
Strategy (CEDS) for the District and related priority projects. 

 Map a local S.W.O.T analysis and a consensus scope of work detailing priorities, 
timelines, budget and responsibilities. 

 Planning and execution of at least two meetings held with the Town of Paradise annually 
to update priorities and provide status reports. 

 Identification of funding sources for S.W.O.T. priorities within the CEDS. 

 Staff hours spent managing the Economic Development Administration Planning District 
as required by the EDA. 

 Maintaining key memberships in national, state, and regional organization representing 
the tri-county region. 

In addition, the Town would be able to contract with 3Core staff for an additional fee for service 
rate to obtain economic development services, such as planning and grant writing and 
administration. 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 

The Fiscal Year 2015-16 Partnership Investment for the Town of Paradise is $3,500.   

 
 

73



74



75



76



77



 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: 3(j) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Gina S. Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 
Crystal Peters, Human Resource & Risk Management Manager 
 

Reviewed by: Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 

Subject: 
 

Crime Policy in Lieu of Bonding Town Officers and Employees 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. 15-__, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 
Paradise approving government crime policies for the purpose of bonding town 
officers and employees and establishing policy limits, or  

Alternatives: 
 
Refer the matter back to staff for further development and consideration. 

Background: 
 
California Government Code 36518 and 36519 requires that Town Council by resolution 
establish the penal sum of the bond for the position of Town Clerk and Town Treasurer 
and for any other officer or employee of the Town.  

Discussion: 
 
The Town uses a Government Crime Insurance Policy in lieu of a surety bond to 
provide coverage for Town officers and employees. The Town’s insurance JPA, 
NCCSIF, requested that the attached resolution be approved to confirm the policy limits 
and Council consent.   
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
No additional costs will be incurred by the approval of this resolution. The government 
crime policy is already in place and has been included in the 2015/16 budget. 
 

78



 

TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO.  15-__ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE  

APPROVING GOVERNMENT CRIME POLICIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF BONDING 

TOWN OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES AND ESTABLISHING POLICY LIMITS 

 

 

 WHEREAS, California Government Code §36518 requires Town Council by resolution 

establish the penal sum of the bond for the position of Town Clerk and Town Treasurer: and 

 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §36519 provides that the Town Council may require 

bonds of any other officer or employee of the Town; and  

 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §1480 provides that every officer, agent or employee 

not required by statute to give an official bond may be required to give an individual official bond or 

other form of individual bond in the amount to be fixed by the appointing power and such bond shall 

inure to the benefit of the appointing power, state, county or municipality by whom such officer, 

employee, or agent is employed as well as the officer under whom the employee or agent serves; and 

 

WHEREAS, Paradise Municipal Code section 2.04.040 requires the Town Manager shall 

furnish a surety company bond to be approved by the Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §1481 (b) provides that notwithstanding any other 

provision of law when deemed expedient by the legislative body of a local public agency, a master 

official bond or other form of master bond may be used which shall provide coverage on more than one 

officer, employee, or agent of the local public agency, whether elected or appointed who is required by 

statute regulation, the appointing power, the governing board of a local public agency, or the board of 

supervisors of a chartered or general law county to give bond; and  

 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §1481 (c) provides that a master bond under this 

section shall be in the form and for the term which is approved by the appointing power or the 

legislative body of a local public agency and shall inure to the benefit of the appointing power, state, or 

local public agency by whom the officer, employee, or agent is employed as well as the officer or 

officers under whom the employee or agent serves. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise as follows: 

  

 

Section 1.     Pursuant to Government Code §1481, Town Council deems it expedient that the bonding 

of the Town of Paradise requirements for public officers and employees required by California 

Government Code sections 36518 and 36519 and Paradise Municipal Code section 2.04.040 shall be in 

the form of a Government Crime Insurance Policy that provides coverage for Town officers and 

employees. 

  

79



 

Section 2.  That the limits of the Government Crime Policy shall be at least $1,000,000 per 

occurrence for employee theft, with a deductible amount of not more than $5,000.00 per occurrence, 

with sub-limits for other forms of loss covered by the policy as deemed appropriate. 

 

Section 3. That the premiums shall be paid by the Town. 

  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Paradise Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of 

Butte, State of California, on this 8th day of September 2015, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

NOT VOTING: 

             

       _______________________________                                                                     

                     Mayor Greg Bolin    

     

  

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:    

    

       
________________________________                 ________________________________                      

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk   DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney  

80



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: 5(a) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Colette Curtis, Administrative Analyst 

Reviewed by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

Subject: 
 

Public Hearing – 2014-2015 Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant Program 

 
Council Action Requested: 

1) Conduct a public hearing to receive comment on the Consolidated Annual Performance 

and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Program 

 
2. Authorize the Town Manager to submit the CAPER to the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development 

 

Background: 

At the conclusion of each program year, the regulations that govern the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program require the preparation of the Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).  The CAPER outlines CDBG program 
accomplishments and expenditures, as well as providing an evaluation of the town’s progress 
toward meeting its community development goals and objectives.   
 
The report covers activities, regardless of the year in which it was funded, that are still open and 
active.  A copy of the draft CAPER is attached for your review and approval.  Any comments 
received during the hearing will be incorporated into the final document prior to its submittal to 
HUD regional office. 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 

The completion of the report does not require an additional expenditure.  Staff time is covered 
by Community Development Block Grant Program funds.  General Fund expenditure is not 
required.  However, failure to complete the report could jeopardize future CDBG funding. 
 

 
 

81



 

 
 

 1 

 Town of Paradise, California 
FIFTH PROGRAM YEAR CAPER  
(July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015) 
 
 

 

GENERAL 
 

Executive Summary 
 

The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) covers the program 
year beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015.  The Town of Paradise, through its 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, has developed a strategy that focuses 
on cultivating Paradise as a viable community by providing decent housing, a suitable living 
environment, and by expanding economic opportunities, principally for low and moderate 
income persons.  The Town received $173,625 in Community Development Block Grant funds 
for the 2014-2015 program year. The funds were allocated in compliance with the 2014-2015 
Annual Action Plan as approved by the Paradise Town Council.  The activities funded in the 
2014-2015 program year were: 
 

 Public Service………………………………………………………..…………………$26,043 

 Housing Assistance………  …………………………………………………………$112,857 

 Planning and General Administration……..…………………………………..…….$34,725 

 
COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION FUNDING – PROGRAM YEAR 2014-2015 

As a part of the Community Development Block Group (CDBG) Annual Plan process, the Town 
has the option of allocating a maximum of 15% of its annual CDBG budget to fund eligible public 
services in the community.   Council directed staff to establish a sub-committee consisting of 
two council representatives and two staff members to hold preliminary interviews with interested 
subrecipients.  The purpose of the subcommittee was to meet with the subrecipients and make 
a formal recommendation to the Council for final approval.    

In accordance with HUD regulations, a notice was published in the newspaper announcing that 
funding would be available.  Notices were placed at the Family Resource Center, the Senior 
Center, and the Library, and in the Chamber e-newsletter.  As a courtesy, notices were also 
sent to prior year subrecipients, as well as to agencies that called for applications.  Thirteen 
organizations responded to the request for funding proposals by submitting a formal application, 
and were eligible for the interview.  The subcommittee, consisting of Council members Rawlings 
and Jones, along with the Town Manager and the Administrative Analyst, met with each of the 
applicants on March 12, 2014.    

In forming its recommendation, the committee discussed the current economic downturn and its 
effect on non-profit organizations, especially those that provide vital services that assist 
individuals and families in crisis.  Although all of the organizations were deserving, the Town’s 
allotment was much smaller than the requests for funding.  This is a major factor in the 
discrepancy between the number of proposed vs. actual accomplishments.  The committee was 

82



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 2  

faced with a tough decision and decided to focus on emergency and vital services that assist 
individuals and families in crisis, especially those badly affected by the economy. 
 
 
 

Applicant Name 
Requested 

Amount 
Final 

Recommendation Proposed Program 

Peg Taylor $5,500  0 

Services for physically & 
developmentally challenged 
residents and services for senior 
population. 

Catalyst $10,000  $5,548  

Provides services to meet the 
needs of domestic violence victims 
and children, provide shelters, 
hotlines, counseling, restraining 
orders. 

Youth for Change $8,000  $7,548  
Assistance to low income families 
to pay for emergency needs and 
bills. 

Boys and  Girls Club $2,500  $2,500  

Provide funding for new program 
"Diplomas to Degrees" to help 
disadvantaged youth finish school 
and apply to college. 

Paradise Senior Center $15,109  $4,447  
Expand current programs for 
senior citizens. 

Paradise Center for 
Tolerance and Nonviolence 

$3,750  0 
Expand bullying prevention 
program for kids. 

Paradise Recreation and 
Park District 

$4,000  $4,000  
Scholarships for low/moderate 
income youth to participate in 
PRPD Youth Sports. 

Salvation Army $2,000  $2,000  
Provide monetary assistance to 
residents for temporary shelter. 

Total Requested $50,859  $26,043 
 Funds Available $26,043 

   
 
 
 
 
 

83



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 3  

  
 
 

   
 

  
 
 

  
 

   
   

  
 
 
 

Boys and Girls Club provided funding for new program "Diplomas to 
Degrees" to help disadvantaged youth finish school and apply to college. 

Catalyst Domestic Violence Services-Prevent and reduce the incidence of 
domestic violence in Butte County by intervening in the cycle of violence 
through crisis intervention services and community education. 

Youth for Change- The programs utilize a strength-centered approach, 
which draws upon community resources to meet the needs of families 
and children. Program emphasis is on treating the whole child with the 
goal of family reunification. Assistance was provided to low income 
families to pay for emergency needs and bills. 

Salvation Army provides temporary shelter for individuals and families in 
times of extreme need.  CDGB funds are used to pay for the motel rooms 
provided in emergency situations for individuals and families with 
nowhere else to go.   

Paradise Recreation and Park District provided scholarships for 
low/moderate income youth to participate in sports programs such as 
little league, swim team, swimming lessons, and soccer. 

Paradise Senior Center used their funding to expand their current 
programming for senior citizens in Paradise with a focus on improving the 
mental and physical health of senior residents.   

84



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 4  

Housing Programs 

 
During the 2014-2015 fiscal year, approximately $30,000 was spent on mortgage assistance and 
$140,072.90 on owner-occupied housing rehabilitation.  These amounts include all funding sources, 
including CDBG and HOME funds.  Our housing program is very successful and crucial to the Town’s 
low/mod income residents and the Town’s stock of affordable housing opportunities available to 
low/mod income residents.  
 

Public Facilities 

 
The Town of Paradise provided $350,000 of CDBG funds for the construction of a wastewater system 
serving Paradise Community Village, a 35-unit rental housing development, which is occupied by low 
and very low income residents.  This project was completed in FY12-13 and rented in FY13-14.  Decent, 
safe and affordable housing is difficult to provide in Paradise because of the high cost of wastewater 
disposal.  The Town has no wastewater treatment facility and every lot must be able to support an 
onsite septic treatment and disposal system.  This drives up the cost of affordable housing considerably. 
The units at Paradise Community Village are managed by an onsite resident manager and there are 
services and programs available for residents.  The Town partnered with the Community Housing 
Improvement program (CHIP) who has a reputation and long-standing record for building and 
maintaining quality affordable housing units. The facility is now open and fully rented up as of October 
2013.  The Town continues to work with CHIP on development plans for the land surrounding Paradise 
Community Village.  The Town also continues to monitor Paradise Community Village annually to ensure 
compliance with CDBG guidelines. 
 
 

 
 

 

Managing the Process 
 
The Community Development Block Grant Program is an integral component of the Town’s housing and 
community development strategy.  To ensure that Community Development Block Grant funds are used 
to benefit the highest number of income eligible households and to coordinate the CDBG Program with 
other federal, state and local programs, management responsibility has been assigned to the Business 
and Housing Services Division which is under the purview and direction of the Town Manager. 
 

The Business and Housing Services Division was initially formed in 1994, the first year the Town of 
Paradise received Community Development Block Grant funds.  The Division provides daily program 

85



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 5  

management, oversight, and long range planning and coordination with other non-profits and other 
public agencies that provide services to low income individuals and families in the community. 
Specifically, the Division staff manages the housing programs to ensure compliance with program 
regulations, including income eligibility, the sub-recipient program to ensure eligibility and regulatory 
compliance; and public facilities projects to make certain that the program meets national objectives 
and compliance with program regulations. 
 

In addition to staff’s responsibilities for program management, the Paradise Town Council is directly 
involved in the development and adoption of the Annual Action Plan and the Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report.  The Council makes the final selection of sub-recipient 
organizations and decides the final allocation of CDBG funds.  Citizen involvement is inherent in the 
development and implementation plan process as oversight of the program.  The Annual Action Plan 
and the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report are available for public review and 
comment during the respective comment periods.  The Town Council, following noticed public hearings, 
enacts final adoption of each. 
 
Lastly, the Town’s independent auditing firm monitors all federal and state funded programs for 
compliance in accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act.  The results of the audit are 
filed with the federal and state agencies, as required by the various funding agencies. 
 

Citizen Participation 
 
The following Public Notice was published in the Paradise Post, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town of Paradise on August 15th, 2015. 
 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
PUBLIC NOTICE OF THE 2014-2015 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND  

EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) 
  

The Town of Paradise seeks public comment on the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation 
Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG).  The CAPER, prepared for 
the U.S. Dept of Housing & Urban Development (HUD), reports on specific federal housing 
assistance/community development activities that occurred during the July 1st, 2014 - June 30th, 2015 
program year.  
 
Copies of the draft CAPER are available for public review at: Town Hall (5555 Skyway), Family Resource 
Center (6249 Skyway), Butte County Library (5922 Clark Road), the Paradise Senior Center (877 
Nunneley Road) and the Town’s website (townofparadise.com.) These locations are known to be 
accessible to persons with disabilities; to persons of low/moderate income, as well as to citizens-at-large 
who may be interested in participating through public commentary. 
 
Written and/or verbal comments will be accepted during the 15-day public notice period beginning 
August 17, 2015.  Comments can also be made at one of two public hearings on September 8th at 3:00 
p.m. and again at 6:00 p.m., during the regular Paradise Town Council meeting (or as soon thereafter as 
possible) at Town Hall. Comments received at the meetings will be included in the report.  If you 
challenge any issues stated above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues raised at said 
public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Town Manager at, or prior to, the public 
hearing.  
 

86



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 6  

For information or to submit comments, contact Colette Curtis at 530-872-6291 x-112. For special 
accommodations, call 48 hours in advance of the meeting. TDD users call CA Relay Service TDD Access 
#1-800-735-2929. 
 

Institutional Structure 
 
The Town Institutional Structure is as follows: 
A five member Town Council holds public hearings on Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans and CAPER 
reports and approves funding for Public Service Agencies 
 
The Town of Paradise, Business and Housing Services staff provides the main administrative and project 
management duties over the CDBG program.  The BHS Staff is under the management of the Town 
Manager.  Staff prepares the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans and Consolidated Annual Performance 
Evaluation Reports (CAPER) for each CDBG program year.  The oversight of the CDBG program is 
provided by the Town Manager.  All reports and plans are reviewed by Council before submitted to 
HUD. 
 
The Town works closely with non-profit organizations in the area that provide specific programs to the 
citizens of Paradise.  These organizations provide services to very low-, low- and moderate-income 
residents, including the frail and elderly, mentally disabled, physically disabled, homeless, and at-risk 
youth.  These organizations submit funding requests to the Town to qualify for money that comes out of 
the Community Needs Category.  As required by HUD, 15% of annual funding is set-aside for these 
organizations.   
 
The Town is also focused on collaboration between government agencies; community needs 
organizations, and local businesses. Community stakeholder meetings give Butte County service 
organizations an opportunity to submit input regarding the populations these organizations serve, their 
current and future needs, challenges and successes.  The following are some of the organizations we are 
involved with: Family Resource Center, Youth for Change, Project Vision, Loaves and Fishes Food 
Ministry, STRIVE, Peg Taylor Center for Adult Day Health Care, Legal Services of Northern California, 
Community Housing Improvement Program and Community Housing Credit Counseling Center, Boys and 
Girls Club of the North Valley, Passages, CCSP Torres Community Shelter, Paradise Center for Tolerance 
and Nonviolence, Salvation Army-Paradise Center, Paradise Meals on Wheels, and the Work Training 
Center. 
 
 

Program Monitoring 
 
The Town follows the procedures adopted in the Code of Federal Regulations, created by the Office of 
the Assistant Secretary of Community Planning and Development that pertain to Community 
Development programs are contained within Part 570 for CDBG entitlement communities.  Once 
applications for grant funding are received and reviewed by staff, they go through a competitive review 
process and recommendations are decided by a funding committee and forwarded to the Town Council 
for final approval.  After funding decisions are made, organizations are required to sign a contract with 
the Town outlining the rules and regulations of public service funds.  They are required to submit the 
required documents and reference material related to grant funding.  These organizations are required 
to report quarterly to the town and also provide an end of year report which is reviewed and input into 
IDIS for yearly accomplishments at the close of the program year.  Organizations are audited and staff 

87



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 7  

performs site visits on a yearly basis.  If organizations are not submitting reports on-time or are unable 
to follow through with program requirements, staff will monitor the organizations to make sure that 
HUD regulations are being met, or funding is relinquished. At the end of each funding year, staff reviews 
the accomplishments of community service agencies to determine their ability to serve the residents of 
Paradise and meet the program requirements.   
 
The Town also follows all applicable program requirements, regarding housing projects and lead-based 
paint standards. Housing applicants are reviewed thoroughly by staff to ensure they have met all 
eligibility requirements.  This may include verification of employment, assets, banking, credit reports 
and income tax information.  Site inspections are utilized to ensure that the housing; whether a 
purchase or rehabilitation complies with safety and health requirements of the programs.  Recipients 
are verified annually through utility billing verification to ensure owner occupancy of the property. 
 
The Town of Paradise Consolidated Plan outlines a 5-year housing and community development strategy 
focused on developing Paradise as a viable community by providing decent housing, a suitable living 
environment, and by expanding economic opportunities, principally for low and moderate income 
persons.   The plan, which sets the goals and objectives for the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG), is in effect from 2010-2015.   
 

The mission of the Strategic Plan is to develop a working document that guides a five year planning 
process that identifies the needs of the community and then prioritizes available funding in order to 
plan and prepare for meeting the needs identified in the process.  By identifying current needs of our 
residents, the town is then able to determine the future needs and funding priorities that will help close 
these gaps to help make Paradise a better community. 
 
This document also evaluates the past performance during the last five years that the Town 
administered its CDBG program.    CDBG funding is an important part of the town’s overall strategy to 
promote a viable community and to help provide decent, safe, and affordable housing.   
 
Goals for the 2010-2015 Consolidated Plan: 
 

1. Improve the condition of the community’s housing supply. 

2. Improve the community’s economic condition. 

3. Improve the community’s well-being by participating with residents and local stakeholders in 
community building efforts. 

 
Specific Objectives for the 2010-2015 Consolidated Plan: 
 

1. Provide opportunities that expand the employment base for the Town. 
 

2. Provide programs/projects that allow opportunities for increased jobs. 
 

3. Provide 36  affordable rental housing units 
 

4. Rehabilitation/repairs of 5 low-income, owner-occupied homes 
 

5. Mortgage assistance or 5 low-income first-time homebuyers 

88



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 8  

 
6. Improve streets, road, parking, traffic circulation in the downtown, which encompasses a HUD 

identified low-income neighborhood, to allow for business-owners to better provide 
goods/services. 

 
7. Provide funding opportunities to non-profits and agencies serving low income residents and 

residents with special needs. 
 

8. Provide education and improved transportation for those services mentioned above. 
 

9. Provide recreational opportunities for at-risk youth and low-income/disadvantaged children. 
 

10. Infrastructure that will improve the opportunities for businesses to prosper.   
 

11. Improve pedestrian safety, especially projects that provide opportunities for children to travel 
safety throughout the community and in their respective neighborhoods. 
 

The planning and public participation process which is such an integral component of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program has been useful in identifying a multitude of community needs.  The 
process has provided a means to express those needs, but more importantly, it has fostered a 
cooperative relationship between the town government, community based organizations, and residents.   
As with most communities, the needs far outweigh the resources available to confront and resolve those 
situations.  However, as illustrated in the Priority Needs table, the CDBG Program has endeavored to 
place funding in those areas of high need.   The luxury of funding medium or low priority activities is not 
one that the town can afford. 
 
The program has identified and funded housing programs, public parks projects, and supported activities 
for a variety of non-profit organizations.  Those efforts have achieved results both in the field and in the 
town’s ability to secure additional public and private sector funding to support those programs. 
 
The town’s barriers to even greater program success are, most likely, the same as those experienced by 
any other American city.  Resources – money and staff – are the limiting factors that negatively influence 
the town’s ability to reach its goals.   
 
The Town of Paradise funds only programs and/or projects that principally benefit low and moderate-
income individuals and families, or benefit a HUD identified low and moderate-income neighborhood, of 
which the town has three.   
  
The Town of Paradise did not conduct any activities that resulted in the relocation of tenants and/or 
homeowners during the program year.  The town makes every effort to accomplish its goals and 
objectives without displacing our residents and businesses. 
 
The Town stays below the one-1/2 times grant amount cap on unspent funds.  Expenditures do not 
differ substantially from letter of credit disbursements because the Town operates its CDBG Program on 
a reimbursement basis. 
 
While the Community Development Block Grant Program is charged with reversing the symptoms of a 
declining community, staff understands that doing so is more than just good planning and 
implementation.  Obstacles must be overcome in order to eliminate the needs of an under-served 

89



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 9  

population and reverse decades of community deterioration.  CDBG funding goes a long way towards 
meeting the needs of the underserved and low/moderate income families in the Town. 
 
In other cases, the obstacle is one resulting from a market economy, such as what happened with the 
Town’s rapidly escalating mortgage crisis.  The housing down-turn has steadied housing prices and has 
left more houses on the market because individuals are concerned about the rising prices of fuel, energy 
and food.   
 
Homes eligible for the HOME-funded mortgage assistance program must not only be affordable to 
income-eligible buyers, but they must also be in “FHA loanable” condition.  Lower priced homes do not 
meet these and other requirements, resulting in a slump in first time homebuyer program activity. 
 

Lead-based Paint 
 
The Town of Paradise manages owner-occupied residential rehabilitation programs and mortgage 
subsidy programs for first time homebuyers.  These programs are funded under a HOME grant from the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).  The HCD funded HOME 
program requires that lead clearances be obtained for both the residential rehabilitation and mortgage 
subsidy programs.   
 
HOUSING 

 
The Town of Paradise manages an owner-occupied residential rehabilitation program and a mortgage 
subsidy program for first time homebuyers.  The owner-occupied residential rehabilitation program 
offers low- and moderate-income homeowners the opportunity to remain in housing that has been 
affordable to them in some cases for over twenty years, by bringing substandard living conditions up to 
a standard level.  The Town of Paradise is completely dependent on septic tanks and leach fields for the 
disposal of wastewater which can pose a serious health/public health issue if these systems fail, as well 
as an affordability issue, given the extreme costs of replacing failed systems.  Absent the Town’s 
assistance, these homeowners would not be able to afford the cost of home maintenance, deferred 
maintenance, and wastewater disposal system replacement.  The challenge of coming up with the 
significant funds needed to cover these expenses is difficult for low- to moderate-income households. 
 

Specific Housing Objectives 
 
As stated in the Annual Action Plan, 18 households would be assisted during the program year.  During 
the program year, a total of 19 low-income households received assistance under the Town’s housing 
rehabilitation and first-time homebuyers programs.  The recipients received assistance under the CDBG 
and HOME. 
 

Public Housing Strategy 
 
The Housing Authority of Butte County administers a Section 8 rental-housing program in the Town of 
Paradise.  The Housing Authority also owns a multi-family complex in town that rents a mixture of 
market and subsidized units.  Although the Town has not been directly involved in the administration of 
either program, the Town and the Housing Authority maintain a close working relationship and assist 
one another whenever requested.   
 

90



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 10  

Barriers to Affordable Housing 
 
The Town has identified the availability of properly priced housing as the principal barrier to affordable 
housing in the community.  Over the past two decades, much of the newly constructed housing has 
been custom homes – a market segment not generally available to low- and moderate-income 
households.  Therefore, it is important to maintain the community’s housing stock that is affordable to 
low- and moderate-income households.  To do so, the Town provides a residential rehabilitation 
program for owner-occupied housing, and a mortgage subsidy program to assist first-time homebuyers.   
 
The residential rehabilitation program allows low- and moderate-income families to remain in a house 
that they can afford.  The increase in the housing market is increasing the demand for mortgage subsidy 
assistance, but the rising home prices is decreasing the number of available affordable units. 
 

HOME 
 
The Town was awarded $1,000,000 for the 2014 HOME Grant for owner-occupied rehabilitation and 
tenant-based rental programs.  In addition, the Town has $231,395 remaining on their 2012 HOME 
grant.     
 
 
HOMELESS 
 
 

Homeless Needs 
 
The Town’s participation in meeting the needs of its homeless population is evolving.  A coalition of 
service providers and concerned residents of both Paradise and the surrounding unincorporated area 
have formed a community-based task force.  The task force is developing a plan of action to identify and 
address the extent of the homeless situation on the Ridge, the characteristics of the homeless 
population, resources available to confront the needs, and the responsible agencies that need to be 
involved in this effort. 
 
The task force is using data collected from a 2013 survey of the area’s homeless population.  The 
homeless census and survey was completed and the count indicates that Paradise and adjacent 
unincorporated areas have 83 homeless individuals.  The survey shows that many of the homeless are 
“couch surfers” and single-parent families living with friends and relatives.  As such, a significant 
element of the homeless population may not meet the federal definition of “homeless”.  While this does 
not diminish the need or the community’s commitment to confronting the issue, it does make funding 
programs to address the needs more difficult. 
 
The Town of Paradise does not directly administer a transitional housing program.  The Town and CDBG 
Program support the local women’s’ shelter and that shelter provides emergency and transitional 
housing.   
 
The Town of Paradise did not seek funding under the SuperNOFA. 
 

 
 

91



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 11  

Specific Homeless Prevention Elements 
 

The Town takes two approaches to homeless prevention.  The first is our residential rehabilitation 
program.  This program provides for the repair of items that threaten the homeowner’s ability to remain 
in the home.  The Town of Paradise is an un-sewered community, and as such relies on septic tanks and 
leach fields located on the homeowner’s property to dispose of wastewater.  A failed wastewater 
system can result in health and safety issues.  Furthermore, many of the homes that are occupied by low 
and moderate-income residents were constructed on smaller lots that can no longer accommodate the 
disposal of wastewater.  This generally results in the need to construct/install special and often 
technologically advanced systems.   These systems can resolve the wastewater issue but they range in 
price from $30,000 to $60,000 – a cost that low and moderate-income residents cannot afford.  The 
residential rehabilitation program makes it possible for these residents to remain in their homes. 
 
The Town of Paradise also supports two community-based organizations that aid in the prevention of 
homelessness.  The CDBG Program funds the Family Resource Center (Youth for Change).  The Center’s 
Family Support Program provides direct services and interventions to income eligible families with the 
goal of avoiding those catastrophic situations that often result in unemployment, delinquent rent 
payments, and homelessness. 
 
The CDBG Program also funds Catalyst, a women’s advocacy group that also provides emergency and 
transitional housing predominantly for abused women and their children.  Services are also available for 
abused men.  The emergency shelter provides an immediate safe harbor and time to recover and 
regroup from the abusive situation. 
 

Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG) 
 
The Town of Paradise does not receive ESG funding. 
 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
The long standing success of the Community Development Block Grant Program is its ability to serve as a 
catalyst.  This, or any other program, will never have funding in the amount needed to address all of the 
community’s needs.  However, community leaders have been successful in using the CDBG program to 
bring community needs to light, fund a demonstration project or a model program, and use the new 
found support and experience to garner even greater community support as well as new funding 
sources.  This broad based community involvement ensures that the community’s goals and objectives 
and the CDBG program’s goals and objectives are not only consistent, but the means to address and 
resolve the needs are coordinated. 
 
All of the Town’s housing programs are available to income qualified households.  In addition, the 
Town’s HOME application for the construction of 36 affordable housing units includes a set aside of 
units for very low income tenants. 
 
The Town of Paradise pursues all reasonable grant opportunities to fund a variety of housing and 
community development projects.  Staff has been successful in obtaining federal and state funding.   
 
All CDBG funds are used to meet national objectives. 
 

92



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 12  

The program endeavors to avoid displacing any residents, and in fact has not pursued activities that 
require relocation. 
 
The program year’s activities did not include a Low/Mod Job component. 
 
Subrecipients are required to verify the income of their program participants. 
 
The program did not receive program income during the program year. 
 
Prior period adjustments, float-funded activities, lump sum activities, and neighborhood revitalization 
activities are not included in the Town’s CDBG program. 
 

Antipoverty Strategy 
 
In general, the intent of the Town’s economic development programs is the creation of living-wage jobs 
for local residents.  Staff continually works with new businesses and existing businesses, with developers 
and entrepreneurs, and with local business associations to expand opportunities and strengthen the 
current state of the local economy; especially to attempt job creation for low/mod citizens 
 
The CDBG Program also continues to fund the Family Resource Center’s Family Support Program, which 
as previously mentioned works with families to avert catastrophic events and strengthen the skill sets 
needed to move out of poverty and into more stable family and economic situations.  
 
 
NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS 
 

Non-homeless Special Needs  
 
California’s legal system is attempting to come to grips with the number of inmates incarcerated for 
substance related crimes.  Many of those imprisoned for substance abuse are being granted an early 
release and treatment in group home settings.  While our local treatment providers knew of the 
impending change, the sheer number of inmates released to these programs resulted in housing related 
issues.   
 
Staff has been actively assisting the largest substance related treatment provider in the effort to expand 
the bed count in group home settings. Staff provided assistance with all aspects of land use, building, 
and wastewater disposal permits.  Additionally, the Town provided a forum to discuss the multitude of 
issues resulting from this new approach to the treatment and rehabilitation of non-violent substance 
abuse offenders.   
 
The issue is by no means resolved.  The demand for beds has caused a near “gold rush” mentality.  
While staff will continue to work with service providers, it is the individuals who believe that they can 
set up a group home and offer meaningful, results-oriented rehabilitation that continues to cause a 
problem – not so much for the Town as an organization, but for the overall community and certainly 
those entering the programs.  This situation will continue to be the principle non-homeless special needs 
issue for the foreseeable future, and staff will continue to play a part in its solution. 
 

93



Town of Paradise 

 

 

 13  

Specific HOPWA Objectives 
 
The Town of Paradise does not administer a HOPWA program. 

94



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: 7(a) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

Subject: 
 

Resolution No. 15-__ Granting Consent to the County of Butte to form the 
Butte County Tourism Business Improvement District (BCTBID) 

  
 

Council Action Requested: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 15-__ granting consent to the County of Butte to form the Butte 

County Tourism Business Improvement District (BCTBID). 

Background: 
On July 14, 2015, the Paradise Town Council heard a presentation from Casey Hatcher, Butte 
County Principal Management Analyst, about the Butte County Tourism Business Improvement 
District.  During this presentation, Ms. Hatcher outlined the desire of Butte County lodging 
business owners to increase overnight stays through tourism marketing.   
 
The purpose of the BCTBID is to promote tourism to Butte County and increase overnight stays 
at lodging businesses within Butte County. In order to fund tourism promotion services, district 
members (lodging businesses) will levy an assessment of 2% on gross, short-term rentals. The 
funds are committed to the BCTBID Owners’ Association, which will be comprised of all district 
members and governed by a Board of Directors chosen by the district membership. The 
Management District Plan (MDP) for the BCTBID outlines the details for the district including 
district boundaries, budget, services, governance, and district membership. Forming the 
BCTBID establishes a committed, consistent source of funding to promote tourism to Butte 
County. 
 
The BCTBID is strongly supported by the Paradise Ridge Chamber of Commerce, with 
Chamber Vice President Jay Cooke speaking at the July 14th meeting in support of the BCTBID. 

   
Discussion: 
Short-term lodging businesses in Butte County submitted petitions requesting the Butte County 
Board of Supervisors initiate proceedings to form the BCTBID in accordance with the Property 
and Business Improvement District Law of 1994.  On August 11, 2015, the Butte County Board 
of Supervisors adopted a Resolution of Intention to form the BCTBID, Resolution No. 15-107, 
which includes a request for the Council for the Town of Paradise to consider a Resolution 
granting consent to the County to form the BCTBID.   

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 

There is no impact to the General Fund. Several hours of staff time will be required each month 
to collect the assessment and remit the funds to the Owners’ Association. The Town of Paradise 
can recover costs associated with collecting the assessment up to 2 percent of the total funds 
collected. 

 
 

95



  1 

TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE, STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA, GRANTING CONSENT TO THE COUNTY OF BUTTE TO FORM 

THE BUTTE COUNTY TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BCTBID) 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Butte is beginning the process to form the Butte County 

Tourism Business Improvement District (BCTBID) pursuant to the Property and Business 

Improvement District Law of 1994, Streets and Highways Code section 36600 et seq., to 

promote tourism and the lodging businesses in Butte County; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Butte has requested consent to 

form the BCTBID in the Town of Paradise with adoption of Butte Board of Supervisors 

Resolution No. 15-107, dated August 11, 2015; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise, as follows:   
 

 Section 1:  The above recitals are true and correct. 
 

 Section 2:  The County of Butte is hereby granted consent to include the Town of 

Paradise in the BCTBID for the formation of the BCTBID and future renewals. 
  

 Section 3:  The Town Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of this 

resolution to the Clerk of the County of Butte Board of Supervisors. 
 

 Section 4:   This resolution is effective upon its adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise State of California, held on this 8th day of September, 2015 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:       
______________________________ 

        Greg Bolin, Mayor 

ATTEST:      

 

 BY:  ___________________________ 

        Joanna Gutierrez, CMC, Town Clerk  

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 

 BY:  ___________________________ 

       Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

 

 

96



 
1 
 

 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 7(b) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT: Pearson Rd Pavement Rehabilitation Project (Paradise Irrigation 

District Funded Repair) 
 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. Award Contract 15-13, Pearson Rd Pavement Rehabilitation Project, to Franklin 
Construction of Chico, CA in the amount of their bid of $99,979.00. 

2. Acknowledge Paradise Irrigation District’s Letter of Intent dated August 27, 2015 to 
reimburse the Town of Paradise of incurred pavement rehabilitation costs. 

 
Background:  

On the afternoon of July 29, 2015, a 12” water main on Pearson Road east of Skyway ruptured. 
This main break caused water to surface at multiple locations on Pearson Road, causing 
substantial damage to the roadway. Paradise Irrigation District (PID) crews quickly responded, 
isolated the leak and then expediently performed the needed repairs to the main over the 
course of the following 12 hours.  
 
On July 30, 2015, staff met with PID General Manager, George Barber to discuss pavement 
rehabilitation scope and process. In an effort collaboratively work together, the Town of 
Paradise agreed to prepare a formal bid solicitation to reconstruct the full width of Pearson 
Road for a 157’ stretch of roadway. This scope is necessary to ensure there are no 
underground voids and developing sinkholes. Furthermore, the road surface must be repaved to 
remove all bumps and failures caused by the water main break’s extreme upward pressure.  
  
Analysis:  

On July 30, 2015, Town of Paradise staff issued a formal Notice to Bidders for the Pearson Rd 
Pavement Rehabilitation Project. The project work description is as follows: 
 

Work consists of in general of road rehabilitation of a 155’ long x 57’ stretch of Pearson 
Road east of Skyway. Includes complete removal of existing hot mix asphalt section, 
replace 12” Class II Aggregate Base, scarify and recompact subgrade, placement of new 
4” section of hot mix asphalt in two 2” lifts, placement of thermoplastic traffic striping and 
markings and installation of retroreflective recessed markers 
 

The project plans and specifications was provided to twelve local, regional and national 
contractor exchanges. Plans and specifications were purchased by two contractors. 

On August 25, 2015, two bids were received by the Town Clerk and publicly opened. A list of 
bids received are shown below: 

Franklin Construction of Chico, CA    $99,979.00 

 Knife River Construction of Chico, CA  $121,621.50 

 

 

97



 
2 
 

 

 

Franklin Construction of Chico, CA is the project low bidder and their bid has been deemed 
complete and responsive. 
 
Bid results were shared with Paradise Irrigation District to confirm funding and next steps. On 
August 27, 2015, Paradise Irrigation District informed the Town of Paradise of their insurance 
carrier’s agreement to cover the pavement rehabilitation costs. This letter is attached to this staff 
report as Exhibit A. 
 
If awarded by Council, staff expects construction to be completed before the end of September, 
including 2-3 nights of construction. Staff will continue to coordinate with PID crews currently 
replacing the 12” main adjacent to the initial break location.   
 
Financial Impact:  
 
The Pearson Road Pavement Rehabilitation Project is 100% funded by Paradise Irrigation 
District and will be reimbursed to the Town of Paradise. Staff is recommending award to 
Franklin Construction in the amount of their bid of $99,979.00 while authorizing a 10% 
construction contingency of $9,997.90 for unforeseen costs.  

 
Alternatives:  
 
Delay or modify recommended action. 
 

 

98



 
 
A
 
M
T
55
P
 
R
 
D
 

 
 
 
 
 

August 27, 20

Mr. Marc Matt
own of Parad
555 Skyway 
aradise, CA 

RE: Dama

Dear Mr. Matt

This letter s
actual cost 
compensati
unforeseen 
 
Please prov
The Town o
 
We truly app
 
Sincerely, 
Paradise Irr
 
 
 
 
George Bar
General Ma

015 

tox, Town En
dise 
 
 95969 

age Repair to

tox, 

serves as co
of repairs to
on will be 
 costs that w

vide the PID w
of Paradise w

preciate you

rigation Distri

rber 
anager  

ngineer 

o Pearson R

onfirmation th
 Pearson Ro
limited to t

was provided 

with a final b
will be solely 

r cooperation

ict 

Road 

hat Paradise
oad that are 
he $99,979
 to PID. 

billing, and w
responsible 

n throughout

e Irrigation D
 due to the le
.00 bid pric

we will promp
 for ensuring 

t this inciden

District will pa
eak on our w
ce plus a 1

tly send the 
 that the pav

nt. 

ay the Town
waterline on 
10% estimat

claim to our 
vement resto

n of Paradise
 July 29, 201
ted continge

 insurance ca
oration is com

e for the 
15.  This 
ency for 

arrier.  
mpleted. 

99



 
1 
 

 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 7(c) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT: Clark Rd Safety Enhancements Construction Contract Award 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. Award Contract 14-05, Clark Road Safety Enhancements, to Franklin Construction of 
Chico, California in the amount of their bid of $441,441.00 and authorize the Town 
Manager to execute. 

 
Background:  

On April 29, 2013, Caltrans announced Cycle 6 Call-for-Projects for the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP). The purpose of this program is to achieve a significant reduction 
in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. The HSIP requires a data-driven, 
strategic approach to improving highway safety on all public roads that focuses on 
performance.  
 
On November 14, 2013, Caltrans approved the Clark Road Safety Enhancements for Federal 
funding. This project was selected based upon the calculated high Benefit-Cost Ratio using 
actual collision data between 2007 and 2011 and implementation of safety countermeasures.  
 
The revised project scope proposes the installation of a two-way left turn lane within the existing 
curb to curb footprint and without reducing travel lanes to create space for collision avoidance 
maneuvers and refuge for phased left turns.  Project limits along Clark Road extend from 
Wagstaff Road to Bille Road.  The project also includes microsurfacing and restriping and 
constructing safety upgrades to non-ADA compliant ramps, sidewalks, and pedestrian 
pushbuttons at the signalized intersections.  
 
On May 13, 2013, Town Council approved Program Supplement Agreement No. 015-N for 
Project HSIPL-5425 (026) to assure receipt of Federal funds for the project. 
 
On August 11, 2015 Town Council adopted a resolution approving the project Plans, 
Specifications and Estimates for the Clark Road Safety Enhancements and authorized 
solicitation of bids.  
 
Analysis:  

The Clark Road Safety Enhancements Project was formally advertised for bids on August 12, 
2015. The project advertisement was published in the Paradise Post on August 12 and August 
22, 2015, in compliance with public contract codes and Federal-aid requirements. Plans and 
Specifications were provided to 12 local, regional, and national construction exchanges. In 
addition, Plans and Specifications were purchased by several contractors. 

 

 

100



 
2 
 

 

On September 3, 2015, two bids were received by the Town Clerk and publicly opened. A list of 
bids received are shown in below: 

 Bidder       Bid Amount 

 Franklin Construction of Chico, CA   $441,441.00 

 All American Asphalt of Yuba City, CA   $493,298.09 

 Engineer’s Estimate     $360,000.00 

Construction costs were higher and number of contractors bidding the project were lower than 
anticipated. This may be due to a variety of factors including, but not limited to an improving 
economy and raw material price increases. Funding for the cost increase is further addressed in 
the Financial Impact portion of this report. 

Following contract and insurance processing, Franklin Construction is expected to commence 
construction in late September / early October. Full project completion including roadway micro-
surfacing and final striping may be dependent upon weather and overnight temperatures. In the 
event of temperature concerns, the contract could be suspended through the winter months and 
be completed in the spring.  

The full proposed contract agreement is provided as Attachment A. 

 
Financial Impact:  
 
The approved project budget was $412,093 including $409,593 in Federal Aid funds. As bids 
came in nearly $80,000 higher than anticipated, staff requested guidance from Caltrans on 
potential securing additional funds to cover the increased costs. On September 3, Caltrans 
notified the Town of Paradise to proceed with contract award and additional Highway Safety 
Improvement Program Funds would be allocated to the project. 

A total breakdown of project phases and expected costs is provided in the table below: 

 

Item / Phase 
Approved           

Federal HSIP  
Additional 

Federal HSIP 
Gas Tax           

(CIP 9367) 
Total 

Preliminary Engineering $22,500 $0 $2,500 $25,000 

Construction $362,093 $79,348 $0 $441,441 

Construction Contingency $0 $44,144 $0 $44,144 

Construction Engineering $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 

Total $409,593 $123,492 $2,500 $535,585 

 
The table above will be updated when a recommended contract award is known. 
 
Alternatives:  
 
Delay or modify recommended action. 
 

 

101



 
 

Town of Paradise 
Department of Public Works 

Owner-Contractor Agreement 
 
 

Contract No. 14-05, Clark Road Safety Enhancements 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this 9th day of September, 2015, in triplicate, between the Town of Paradise 
(“Town”), and Franklin Construction, Inc., (“Contractor”). 
 
ARTICLE I. – WITNESSETH, That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 
mentioned, to be made and performed by the Town, and under the conditions expressed in the two (2) 
bonds, bearing even date with these presents, and hereunto annexed, the Contractor agrees, at 
Contractor’s own proper cost and expense, to do all the project work and furnish all the materials, except 
such as are mentioned in the specifications to be furnished by the Town, necessary to construct and 
complete in a good, workmanlike and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Town, the project 
work described in the special provisions and the project plans described below, including any addenda 
thereto, and also in conformance with the California Department of Transportation Standard Plans, dated 
2010, the Standard Specifications, dated 2010 (within the Caltrans Standard Specifications, the word 
“Department” shall mean the “Town”) and the Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates in effect on 
the date the project work is accomplished, which the special provisions, project plans, Standard Plans, 
Standard Specifications, and Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates are hereby specially referred 
to and by such reference made a part hereof. 
The Notice to Bidders, Special Provisions, Bid Documents, and Contract Forms included in this Agreement 
are dated August 12, 2015 and are entitled: 
 

Contract Specifications and Bid Book 
for 

Clark Road Safety Enhancements 
 

Contract 14-05 
Federal Project No. HSIPL 5425 (28) 

 
The Project Plans for the project work are dated August 12, 2015 and are entitled: 

 
Project Plans 

for 
Clark Road Safety Enhancements 

 
Which are hereby made part of this Agreement. 
ARTICLE II.  – The Contractor agrees to receive and accept the following prices as full compensation for 
furnishing all materials and for doing all the project work contemplated and embraced in this Agreement; 
also for all loss or damage arising out of the nature of the project work aforesaid, or from the action of the 
elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which may arise or be encountered in the 
prosecution of the project work until its acceptance by the Town of Paradise and for all risks of every 
description connected with the project work; also for all expenses incurred by or in consequence of the 
suspension or discontinuance of project work and for well and faithfully completing the project work, and 
the whole thereof, in the manner and according to the plans and specifications and the requirements of the 
Engineer under them, to wit. 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 1 of 61

102



Contract Bid Items  
for 

Contract No. 14-05, Clark Road Safety Enhancements 
 

Bid 
Item Item Description Unit of 

Measure 
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Total Amount 

1 Jobsite Photographs and Video LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

2 Stormwater Pollution Protection Plan and BMPs LS 1 $3,359.66 $3,359.66 

3 Traffic Control System LS 1 $82,218.00 $82,218.00 

4 Demolition SF 7772 $8.00 $62,176.00 

5 Minor Concrete, 6" Curb and Gutter LF 604 $26.00 $15,704.00 

6 Minor Concrete, Pedestrian Access Ramp EA 13 $1,850.00 $24,050.00 

7 Minor Concrete, Pedestrian Access Island Modifications EA 4 $1,850.00 $7,400.00 

8 Minor Concrete, Driveway SF 635 $10.00 $6,350.00 

9 Minor Concrete, Sidewalk SF 140 $7.00 $980.00 

10 Truncated Domes, Federal Yellow, Surface Applied EA 3 $425.00 $1,275.00 

11 Truncated Domes, Federal Yellow, Cast-in-Place EA 26 $425.00 $11,050.00 

12 Pavement/Concrete Restoration Area SF 2152 $21.00 $45,192.00 

13 Type III Microsurfacing SY 30659 $3.26 $99,948.34 

14 Signal Modifications (Clark Road at Bille Road) LS 1 $26,800.00 $26,800.00 

15 Signal Modifications (Clark Road at Wagstaff Road) LS 1 $26,800.00 $26,800.00 

16 Thermoplastic Striping, 12" White LF 1281 $4.00 $5,124.00 

17 Thermoplastic Striping, Detail 9 Lane Line LF 7552 $1.00 $7,552.00 

18 Thermoplastic Striping, Detail 22 Centerline LF 1897 $2.00 $3,794.00 

19 Thermoplastic Striping, Detail 29 Center Median LF 78 $3.00 $234.00 

20 Thermoplastic Striping, Detail 32 Center Turn Lane LF 2076 $3.00 $6,228.00 

21 Thermoplastic Striping, Detail 38 Channel Line LF 738 $2.00 $1,476.00 

22 Thermoplastic Marking, Type IV Arrow (L) EA 42 $65.00 $2,730.00 

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT =  $441,441.00 

 
 
ARTICLE III.  – The Town hereby promises and agrees with the  Contractor to employ, and does hereby 
employ, the Contractor to provide the materials and  to do the project work according to the terms and 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 2 of 61

103



conditions herein contained and referred to, for the prices hereinafter set forth, and hereby agrees to pay 
the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions above set forth; and the parties for themselves, 
their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of 
the covenants  contained in this Agreement. 
ARTICLE IV. – Contractor certifies that Contractor is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor 
Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and will comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the project work of this Agreement. 
ARTICLE V. – It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that if there be any conflict 
between the terms of this Agreement and the bid of the Contractor, then this agreement shall control and 
nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the Bid conflicting herewith. 
ARTICLE VI. – The Town of Paradise hereby employs Contractor to provide material and to do the project 
work according to the terms and conditions herein contained and referred to for the following prices to be 
paid at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions set forth in this agreement. 
ARTICLE VII. – The project work required in the performance of this Agreement is an improvement over 
which the Town of Paradise shall exercise general supervision. 
ARTICLE VIII. – The statement of prevailing wages appearing in the General Prevailing Wage Rates is 
hereby specifically referred to and by this reference is made a part of this Agreement. It is further expressly 
agreed, by and between the terms of this Agreement and the bid of the Contractor, that this Agreement 
shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the Bid conflicting 
with this Agreement.  
ARTICLE IX. –  Notwithstanding any other provision, all claims by the Contractor for $375,000 or less 
against the Town shall be subject to the procedures set forth in Public Contract Code sections 20104 to 
20104.8; a copy of which is shown below: 
20104.   
 
(a)  (1) This article applies to all public works claims of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) or less which 

arise between a contractor and a local agency. 
 (2) This article shall not apply to any claims resulting from a contract between a contractor and a public agency when the 

public agency has elected to resolve any disputes pursuant to Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 10240) of Chapter 1 of 
Part 2. 

(b)  (1) "Public work" has the same meaning as in Sections 3100 and 3106 of the Civil Code, except that "public work" does not 
include any work or improvement contracted for by the state or the Regents of the University of California. 

 (2) "Claim" means a separate demand by the contractor for (A) a time extension, (B) payment of money or damages arising 
from work done by, or on behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a public work and payment of which is not 
otherwise expressly provided for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to, or (C) an amount the payment of which is 
disputed by the local agency. 

(c)  The provisions of this article or a summary thereof shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any work which may 
give rise to a claim under this article.   (d) This article applies only to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 1991. 

20104.2. 
For any claim subject to this article, the following requirements apply: 
(a)  The claim shall be in writing and include the documents necessary to substantiate the claim.  Claims must be filed on or 

before the date of final payment.  Nothing in this subdivision is intended to extend the time limit or supersede notice 
requirements otherwise provided by contract for the filing of claims. 

(b) (1) For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), the local agency shall respond in writing to any written claim 
within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional 
documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses to the claim the local agency may have against the claimant. 

 (2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this subdivision, upon 
mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant. 

 (3) The local agency's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant within 15 
days after receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the claimant in 
producing the additional information, whichever is greater. 

(c) (1) For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) and less than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars 
($375,000), the local agency shall respond in writing to all written claims within 60 days of receipt of the claim, or may 
request, in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to 
defenses to the claim the local agency may have against the claimant. 

 (2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this subdivision, upon 
mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant.  

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 3 of 61

104



 (3) The local agency's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant within 30 
days after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the claimant in 
producing the additional information or requested documentation, whichever is greater. 

(d)  If the claimant disputes the local agency's written response, or the local agency fails to respond within the time prescribed, 
the claimant may so notify the local agency, in writing, either within 15 days of receipt of the local agency's response or 
within 15 days of the local agency's failure to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon a demand, the local agency shall schedule a 
meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

(e) Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion remains in dispute, the claimant may file a claim as 
provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 
3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code.  For purposes of those provisions, the running of the period of time within which a 
claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits Contractor’s or her written claim pursuant to subdivision 
(a) until the time that claim is denied as a result of the meet and confer process, including any period of time utilized by the 
meet and confer process. 

(f)  This article does not apply to tort claims and nothing in this article is intended nor shall be construed to change the time 
periods for filing tort claims or actions specified by Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing 
with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 

20104.4. 
The following procedures are established for all civil actions filed to resolve claims subject to this article: 
(a)  Within 60 days, but no earlier than 30 days, following the filing or responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the matter to 

nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of both parties.  The mediation process shall provide for the 
selection within 15 days by both parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be commenced within 30 days of 
the submittal, and shall be concluded within 15 days from the commencement of the mediation unless a time requirement 
is extended upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both parties.  If the parties fail to select a mediator 
within the 15-day period, any party may petition the court to appoint the mediator. 

(b)  (1) If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing 
with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code.  The 
Civil Discovery Act (Title 4 (commencing with Section 2016.010) of Part 4of the Code of Civil Procedure) shall apply to any 
proceeding brought  under this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to judicial arbitration. 
(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon stipulation of the parties, arbitrators appointed for purposes of this 
article shall be experienced in construction law, and, upon stipulation of the parties, mediators and arbitrators shall be paid 
necessary and reasonable hourly rates of pay not to exceed their customary rate, and such fees and expenses shall be 
paid equally by the parties, except in the case of arbitration where the arbitrator, for good cause, determines a different 
division.  In no event shall these fees or expenses be paid by state or county funds. 
(3) In addition to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, any 
party who after receiving an arbitration award requests a trial de novo but does not obtain a more favorable judgment shall, 
in addition to payment of costs and fees under that chapter, pay the attorney's fees of the other party arising out of the trial 
de novo. 

(c)  The court may, upon request by any party, order any witnesses to participate in the mediation or arbitration process. 
20104.6. 
(a)  No local agency shall fail to pay money as to any portion of a claim which is undisputed except as otherwise provided in the 

contract. 
(b)  In any suit filed under Section 20104.4, the local agency shall pay interest at the legal rate on any arbitration award or 

judgment.  The interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of law. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties to these presents have hereunto set their hands the year and date 
first above written 
 TOWN OF PARADISE 
 
 
 By  ____________________________________  
 Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
   
 CONTRACTOR 
 
 
 By  ____________________________________  
                Franklin Construction, Inc. 

 
 
Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of contractors, 
License No. _____________________________________________________ 
Federal Employer Identification Number  ______________________________ 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 4 of 61

105



 
 
 

Approved and certified as being in conformance with the requirements of the Public Contract Code 
Section 20160 et seq. 

 
 
  ______________________________________  
 Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
 
 
 Approved Effective  _______________________  

  

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 5 of 61

106



 
Town of Paradise 

Department of Public Works 

Federal Minimum Wage Rates 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

10-Day Rule Check: August 28, 2015 
 

Effective Wage Determination: 
 

Modification Number 15 of General Decision Number CA15009 08/14/2015 CA9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 6 of 61

107



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 7 of 61

108



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 8 of 61

109



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 9 of 61

110



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 10 of 61

111



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 11 of 61

112



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 12 of 61

113



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 13 of 61

114



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 14 of 61

115



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 15 of 61

116



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 16 of 61

117



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 17 of 61

118



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 18 of 61

119



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 19 of 61

120



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 20 of 61

121



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 21 of 61

122



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 22 of 61

123



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 23 of 61

124



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 24 of 61

125



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 25 of 61

126



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 26 of 61

127



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 27 of 61

128



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 28 of 61

129



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 29 of 61

130



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 30 of 61

131



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 31 of 61

132



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 32 of 61

133



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 33 of 61

134



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 34 of 61

135



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 35 of 61

136



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 36 of 61

137



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 37 of 61

138



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 38 of 61

139



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 39 of 61

140



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 40 of 61

141



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 41 of 61

142



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 42 of 61

143



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 43 of 61

144



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 44 of 61

145



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 45 of 61

146



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 46 of 61

147



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 47 of 61

148



ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 48 of 61

149



 
Town of Paradise 

Department of Public Works 

FHWA Form 1273, Federal Aid Contract Provisions 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 49 of 61

150



1 

 

FHWA-1273 --  Revised May 1, 2012  
 
 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS  
FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
 
 

 
I.  General   
II.  Nondiscrimination 
III. Nonsegregated Facilities 
IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions 
V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

Provisions 
VI.  Subletting or Assigning the Contract 
VII. Safety: Accident Prevention 
VIII.  False Statements Concerning Highway Projects 
IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act 
X.  Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and 

Debarment Requirements 
XI.  Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for 

Lobbying 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian 
Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access 
Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only) 
 
 
I.  GENERAL 
 
1.  Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each 
construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding 
emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal).  The 
contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each 
subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services).   
 
The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are 
incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase 
order, rental agreement or agreement for other services.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.   
 
Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-
build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, 
purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for 
supplies or services).  The design-builder shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor 
or service provider. 
  
Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid 
proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the 
Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not 
referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services related to a 
construction contract). 
 
2.  Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following 
sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work 
performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization 
and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's 
immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the 
contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. 

  
3.   A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these 
Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for 
withholding of progress payments, withholding of final 
payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment 
or any other action determined to be appropriate by the 
contracting agency and FHWA. 
 
4.  Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, 
the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose 
within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid 
highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on 
parole, supervised release, or probation.  The term Federal-aid 
highway does not include roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors. 
 
 
II.  NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are 
applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all 
related construction subcontracts of $10,000 or more.  The 
provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material 
supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.   
 
In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply 
with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 
29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related 
regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR 
Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with:  the 
requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-
1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding $10,000, 
the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity 
Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3. 
 
Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to 
determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the 
policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 
CFR 1625-1627.  The contracting agency and the FHWA have 
the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 
Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR 
Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix 
A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. 
Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.   
 
1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment 
opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take 
affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth 
under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 
29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) 
and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the 
provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 
U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative 
action standards for the contractor's project activities under 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 50 of 61

151



2 

 

this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 
35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this 
contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor 
agrees to comply with the following minimum specific 
requirement activities of EEO: 
 

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and 
the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every 
good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all 
of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review 
of activities under the contract. 
 
    b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the 
following statement: 
 

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, 
national origin, age or disability.  Such action shall include: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-
job training." 

 
2.  EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make 
known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have 
the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively 
administering and promoting an active EEO program and who 
must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do 
so. 
 
3.  Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's 
staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and 
discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who 
are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully 
cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy 
and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade 
and classification of employment.  To ensure that the above 
agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a 
minimum: 
 

a.  Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office 
employees will be conducted before the start of work and then 
not less often than once every six months, at which time the 
contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be 
reviewed and explained.  The meetings will be conducted by 
the EEO Officer. 
  

b.  All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be 
given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering 
all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within 
thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor. 
 

c.  All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for 
the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the 
contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and 
women. 
  

d.  Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO 
policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, 
applicants for employment and potential employees. 
 

e.  The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to 
implement such policy will be brought to the attention of 
employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or 
other appropriate means. 
 

4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the 
contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the 
notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer."  All such 
advertisements will be placed in publications having a large 
circulation among minorities and women in the area from 
which the project work force would normally be derived. 
 

a.  The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid 
bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct 
recruitment through public and private employee referral 
sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women.  To 
meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of 
potential minority group employees, and establish with such 
identified sources procedures whereby minority and women 
applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment 
consideration. 
 

b.  In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining 
agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the 
contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that 
agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's 
compliance with EEO contract provisions.  Where 
implementation of such an agreement has the effect of 
discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the 
contractor to do the same, such implementation violates 
Federal nondiscrimination provisions. 
 

c.  The contractor will encourage its present employees to 
refer minorities and women as applicants for employment.  
Information and procedures with regard to referring such 
applicants will be discussed with employees. 
 
5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and 
employee benefits shall be established and administered, and 
personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, 
promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be 
taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability.  The following procedures shall be 
followed: 
 

a.  The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project 
sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities 
do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site 
personnel. 
 

b.  The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of 
wages paid within each classification to determine any 
evidence of discriminatory wage practices. 
 

c.  The contractor will periodically review selected personnel 
actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of 
discrimination.  Where evidence is found, the contractor will 
promptly take corrective action.  If the review indicates that the 
discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such 
corrective action shall include all affected persons. 
 

d.  The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of 
alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection 
with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve 
such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action 
within a reasonable time.  If the investigation indicates that the 
discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, 
such corrective action shall include such other persons.  Upon 
completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform 
every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal. 
 
6. Training and Promotion: 
 

a.  The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and 
increasing the skills of minorities and women who are 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 51 of 61

152



3 

 

applicants for employment or current employees.  Such efforts 
should be aimed at developing full journey level status 
employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.  
 

b.  Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements 
and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the 
contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., 
apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the 
geographical area of contract performance.  In the event a 
special provision for training is provided under this contract, 
this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the 
special provision.  The contracting agency may reserve 
training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance 
in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a). 
 

c.  The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each. 
 

d.  The contractor will periodically review the training and 
promotion potential of employees who are minorities and 
women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for 
such training and promotion. 
 
7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon 
unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good 
faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to 
increase opportunities for minorities and women.  Actions by 
the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's 
association acting as agent, will include the procedures set 
forth below: 
 

a.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in 
cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed 
toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership 
in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women 
so that they may qualify for higher paying employment. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an 
EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such 
union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or 
disability. 
 

c.  The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral 
practices and policies of the labor union except that to the 
extent such information is within the exclusive possession of 
the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such 
information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to 
the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have 
been made to obtain such information. 
 

d.  In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor 
with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth 
in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, 
through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment 
vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified 
and/or qualifiable minorities and women.  The failure of a union 
to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to 
provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective 
bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the 
requirements of this paragraph.   In the event the union referral 
practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations 
pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these 
special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the 
contracting agency. 
 
8.  Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / 
Employees with Disabilities:  The contractor must be familiar 

with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there 
under.  Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in 
all employment activities unless to do so would cause an 
undue hardship. 
 
9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials 
and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention 
of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and 
leases of equipment.  The contractor shall take all necessary 
and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the 
administration of this contract. 
 

a.  The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and 
suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this 
contract. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure 
subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations. 
 
 
10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b): 
 

a.  The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State 
DOT’s U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by 
reference. 
 

b.  The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach 
of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency 
deems appropriate. 
 
11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such 
records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO 
requirements.  Such records shall be retained for a period of 
three years following the date of the final payment to the 
contractor for all contract work and shall be available at 
reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA. 
 

a.  The records kept by the contractor shall document the 
following: 
 
    (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-
minority group members and women employed in each work 
classification on the project; 
 

(2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation 
with unions, when applicable, to increase employment 
opportunities for minorities and women; and 

 
(3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, 

training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women;  
 

b.  The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual 
report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of 
the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and 
non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work 
classification required by the contract work.  This information is 
to be reported on Form FHWA-1391.  The staffing data should 
represent the project work force on board in all or any part of 
the last payroll period preceding the end of July.  If on-the-job 
training is being required by special provision, the contractor 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 52 of 61

153



4 

 

will be required to collect and report training data.  The 
employment data should reflect the work force on board during 
all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of 
July. 
 
 
III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of 
$10,000 or more. 
 
The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for 
employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot 
result.  The contractor may neither require such segregated 
use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by 
employee custom.  The contractor's obligation extends further 
to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their 
services at any location, under the contractor's control, where 
the facilities are segregated.  The term "facilities" includes 
waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, 
time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other 
storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, 
recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing 
provided for employees.  The contractor shall provide separate 
or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping 
areas to assure privacy between sexes. 
 
 
IV.  DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS 

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
projects exceeding $2,000 and to all related subcontracts and 
lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size).  The 
requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-
way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid 
highway.  This excludes roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt.  
Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to 
other projects. 

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of 
Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 “Contract provisions and 
related matters” with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-
1273 format and FHWA program requirements. 

1.  Minimum wages 

a.  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon 
the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less 
often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or 
rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are 
permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 
under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of 
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents 
thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may 
be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers 
and mechanics. 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona 
fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages 
paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions 

of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions 
made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not 
less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate 
wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for 
the classification of work actually performed, without regard to 
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification 
may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, 
That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed. 
The wage determination (including any additional classification 
and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this 
section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be 
posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where 
it can be easily seen by the workers. 

b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of 
laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in 
the wage determination and which is to be employed under the 
contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(i) The work to be performed by the classification 
requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination; and 

(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the 
construction industry; and 

(iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide 
fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the 
wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be 
employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of 
the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 
Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and 
so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting 
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is 
necessary. 

(3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics 
to be employed in the classification or their representatives, 
and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the 
contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the 
views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for 
determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 
30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 53 of 61

154



5 

 

will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that 
additional time is necessary. 

(4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where 
appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 
1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing 
work in the classification under this contract from the first 
day on which work is performed in the classification. 

c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the 
contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination 
or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash 
equivalent thereof. 

d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or 
other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of 
Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, 
that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have 
been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor 
to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of 
obligations under the plan or program. 

2.  Withholding  

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from 
the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-
assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so 
much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 
including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or 
helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part 
of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency 
may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as 
may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations 
have ceased. 

3.  Payrolls and basic records  

a.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and 
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers 
and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records 
shall contain the name, address, and social security number of 
each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates 
of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs 
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents 
thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the 
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that 
the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a 
plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-

Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show 
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, 
that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the 
laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the 
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such 
benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under 
approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the 
applicable programs. 

b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in 
which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
the contracting agency.   The payrolls submitted shall set out 
accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social 
security numbers and home addresses shall not be included 
on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to 
include an individually identifying number for each employee ( 
e.g. , the last four digits of the employee's social security 
number). The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is 
available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division 
Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm 
or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for 
the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. 
Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, 
and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency 
for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and 
Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and 
social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own 
records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency.. 

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a 
“Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the 
payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following: 

(i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of 
Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is 
being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 
CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and 
complete; 

(ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each 
helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly 
wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 
and that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than 
permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR 
part 3; 

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 
less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or 
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract. 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 54 of 61

155



6 

 

(3) The weekly submission of a properly executed 
certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 
WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
“Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of 
this section. 

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of 
title 31 of the United States Code. 

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records 
required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for 
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the 
FHWA,  or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours 
on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the 
required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, 
after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or 
the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or 
guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may 
be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4.  Apprentices and trainees  

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).  

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with 
a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a 
person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but 
who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for 
probationary employment as an apprentice.  

 The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job 
site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio 
permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under 
the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an 
apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any 
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 
ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 
for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is 
performing construction on a project in a locality other than 
that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly 
rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered 
program shall be observed.  

 Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly 

rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with 
the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the 
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, 
apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different 
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, 
fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.  

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an 
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved. 

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).  

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be 
permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the 
work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and 
individually registered in a program which has received prior 
approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration.  

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be 
greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration.  

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified 
in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall 
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention 
fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee 
rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. 
In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in 
excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the work actually performed.  

In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no 
longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of 
apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR part 30. 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 55 of 61

156



7 

 

d.  Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). 

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and 
skill training programs which have been certified by the 
Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection 
with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not 
subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 
The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and 
trainees under such programs will be established by the 
particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to 
journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of 
the particular program. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.   The 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 
3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts.   The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the 
subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment.   A breach of the 
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination 
of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act 
requirements.  All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 
are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising 
out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not 
be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such 
disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures 
of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 
7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the 
contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 
employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of eligibility. 

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an 
interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to 
be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person 
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue 
of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the 
U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

 
 
V.   CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY 
STANDARDS ACT  

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction 
contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the 
overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to 
the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6.  As 
used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics 
include watchmen and guards. 

1. Overtime requirements.   No contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the contract work which may require 
or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to 
work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated 
damages.  In the event of any violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor 
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done 
under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such 
District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in 
paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty 
hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. 
The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action 
or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any 
other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same 
prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this 
section. 

4. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) 
through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this 
section. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 56 of 61

157



8 

 

 
VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts on the National Highway System. 
 
1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization 
contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a 
greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of 
the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items 
designated by the contracting agency.  Specialty items may be 
performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 
specialty items performed may be deducted from the total 
original contract price before computing the amount of work 
required to be performed by the contractor's own organization 
(23 CFR 635.116). 
 

a.  The term “perform work with its own organization” refers 
to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and 
equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or 
without operators.  Such term does not include employees or 
equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, 
agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees.  The 
term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased 
employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant 
Federal and State regulatory requirements.  Leased 
employees may only be included in this term if the prime 
contractor meets all of the following conditions: 
 
  (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the 
supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased 
employees; 

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality 
of the work of the leased employees; 

   (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or 
exclude individual employees from work on the project; and 

(4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for 
the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the 
submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all 
other Federal regulatory requirements. 

 
b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work 

that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or 
equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting 
organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the 
contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract. 
 
  2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth 
in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of 
material and manufactured products which are to be 
purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract 
provisions. 
 
3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent 
or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to 
direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract 
requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations 
(regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its 
own organizational resources (supervision, management, and 
engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is 
necessary to assure the performance of the contract. 
 
4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or 
otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the 
contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such 
consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the 
contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the 
contract.  Written consent will be given only after the 
contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is 

evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions 
and requirements of the prime contract. 
 
5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is 
not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting 
agencies may establish their own self-performance 
requirements. 
 
 
VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
T h i s  p r o v i s i o n  i s  applicable to all Federal-aid 
construction contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
1.  In the performance of this contract the contractor shall 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws 
governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The 
contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and 
protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it 
determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be 
reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of 
employees on the job and the safety of the public and to 
protect property in connection with the performance of the 
work covered by the contract. 
 
2.  It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a 
condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into 
pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any 
subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance 
of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her 
health or safety, as determined under construction safety and 
health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary 
of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 
 
3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract 
that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative 
thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract 
performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance 
with the construction safety and health standards and to carry 
out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C.3704). 
 
 
VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS 
 
T h i s  p r o v i s i o n  i s  applicable to all Federal-aid 
construction contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
  In order to assure high quality and durable construction in 
conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high 
degree of reliability on statements and representations made 
by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-
aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned 
with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, 
and honestly as possible.  Willful falsification, distortion, or 
misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the 
project is a violation of Federal law.  To prevent any 
misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and 
similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each 
Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more 
places where it is readily available to all persons concerned 
with the project: 
 
 
18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows: 
 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 57 of 61

158



9 

 

  "Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United 
States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a 
person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any 
false statement, false representation, or false report as to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to 
be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to 
be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the 
submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs 
of construction on any highway or related project submitted for 
approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or 
 
  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false 
representation, false report or false claim with respect to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to 
be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in 
connection with the construction of any highway or related 
project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or 
 
  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false 
representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, 
or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid 
Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended 
and supplemented; 
 
  Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 
years or both." 
 
 
IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this 
contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, 
Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as 
appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 
 
  1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the 
performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an 
award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act 
or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act.   
  2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be 
included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in 
every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as 
the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such requirements. 
 
 
X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 
SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier 
subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant 
contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA 
approval or that is estimated to cost $25,000 or more –  as 
defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 
 
 
 
  1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:  
  
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
first tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out 
below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 

covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification 
set out below. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the department or agency's 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, 
failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person 
from participation in this transaction. 
 
    c. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting 
agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later 
determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 
 
    d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom 
this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
 
    e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person,"  "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  “First Tier Covered 
Transactions” refers to any covered transaction between a 
grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such 
as the prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions” refers to any covered transaction under a First 
Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier 
Participant” refers to the participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal 
funds (such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier 
Participant” refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).  
 
    f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting 
this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by 
the department or agency entering into this transaction. 
 
    g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," 
provided by the department or contracting agency, entering 
into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower 
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 
covered transactions exceeding the $25,000 threshold. 
 
    h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous.  A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration. 
 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 58 of 61

159



10 

 

    i.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require the establishment of a system of records in order to 
render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of the prospective participant 
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by 
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause 
or default. 
 
* * * * * 
 
2.  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier 
Participants: 
 
a.  The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 
 
    (1)   Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participating in covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 
 
    (2)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under 
a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
    (3)   Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and 
 
    (4)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
  b.   Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to 
any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
  2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 
 
(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other 
lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or 
estimated to cost $25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 
1200) 
 
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
lower tier is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department, or agency with which 

this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
    c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant 
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 
 
    d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  You may contact the person to 
which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a 
copy of those regulations.  “First Tier Covered Transactions” 
refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or 
subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the 
prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered Transactions” 
refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered 
Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” 
refers to the participant who has entered into a covered 
transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds 
(such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier 
Participant” refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers). 
 
    e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by 
submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into 
any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated. 
 
    f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding 
the $25,000 threshold. 
 
    g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration.   
 
    h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require establishment of a system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 59 of 61

160



11 

 

department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment. 
 
* * * * * 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier 
Participants: 
 
  1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by 
submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in 
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 
 
  2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to 
certify to any of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 
 
* * * * * 
 
XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT 
FUNDS FOR LOBBYING 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed 
$100,000 (49 CFR 20). 
 
  1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and 
submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 
 
    a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
 
    b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
  2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 
entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 
U.S.C. 1352.  Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
  3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its 
bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier 
subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and that all such 
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 60 of 61

161



12 

 

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS 
PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT 
HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS 
ROAD CONTRACTS 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded 
under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965. 
 
  1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor 
undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done 
as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who 
regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL 
wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the 
Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is 
situated, except: 
 
    a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in 
the area are not available. 
 
    b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ 
supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to 
assure an efficient execution of the contract work. 
 
    c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to 
present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective 
bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident 
persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not 
exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed 
by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in 
subparagraph (4) below. 
 
  2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State 
Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the 
laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform 
the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in 
each classification, (c) the date on which the participant 
estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other 
pertinent information required by the State Employment 
Service to complete the job order form.  The job order may be 
placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by 
telephone.  If during the course of the contract work, the 
information submitted by the contractor in the original job order 
is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify 
the State Employment Service. 
 
  3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified 
job applicants referred to him by the State Employment 
Service.  The contractor is not required to grant employment to 
any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to 
perform the classification of work required. 
 
  4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by 
the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State 
Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job 
applicants to the contractor, or less than the number 
requested, the State Employment Service will forward a 
certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of 
applicants.  Such certificate shall be made a part of the 
contractor's permanent project records.  Upon receipt of this 
certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not 
normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the 
certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) 
above. 
 
    5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the 
contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the 
use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian 
region.   
 

  6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 
through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work 
which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work. 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

HSIPL 5425 (028) 
Owner-Contractor Agreement 

Page 61 of 61

162



 

 

 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

Agenda No.  7(d) 
 

ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   Paradise Police Department Emergency Siding Repairs 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  
1. Adopt the attached Resolution No. __________, ”A Resolution of the Town Council of 

the Town of Paradise Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing Repair or Replacement 
of the Paradise Police Department Building Exterior Siding Without Observance of 
Public Bidding Requirements”; and 
 

2. Authorize the Town Manager to execute agreements for a contractor and/or materials for 
the subject project. 

 
Background:  
 
Paradise Police Department, located at 5595 Black Olive Drive has been needing repairs to the 
exterior siding for many years. Indigenous woodpeckers have progressively damaged and 
penetrated the siding causing potential for dry rot, leaks and further damage. In previous years, 
due to budget shortfalls, repairs and mitigation had been deferred. 
 
In the 2015/2016 Operating Budget, the Measure C Committee recommended and Council 
approved an appropriation of $21,000 for repairs to the Police Department exterior siding. 
 
Analysis:  
 
Following approval of fund allocation, the construction of the Police Department Siding Repairs 
was scheduled for Spring 2016. However, a recent inspection of the current conditions revealed 
the south and east exterior building walls may not last through another wet season, let alone a 
predicted heavy rainfall year.  
 
Staff is recommending Council declare an emergency to rehabilitate the southern and western 
exterior portions of the Paradise Police Department. This declaration is critical to avoid a 
catastrophic loss or further exacerbation of the current conditions. Using this action, staff can 
forgo the formal competitive bidding process which can take an additional 30 days. Staff will 
informally request quotations from interested contractors to perform the work professionally and 
expediently.  
 
Staff will continue to provide updates on the subject item until full remediation on the emergency 
is complete. 
 
Financial Impact:  
 
Staff has estimated the rehabilitation of the southern and western walls to be between $8,000 
and $12,000. Funds for this work will be drawn from Measure C “Police Station Siding and Mold 
Abatement” Account 1010.25.4420.300.5303.  

 

163



TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING REPAIR OR  

REPLACEMENT OF THE PARADISE POLICE DEPARTMENT BUILDING EXTERIOR 

SIDING WITHOUT OBSERVANCE OF PUBLIC BIDDING REQUIREMENTS. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, a recent inspection of the Paradise Police Department at 5595 Black Olive Drive 

revealed the building siding has degraded to a level previously unknown; and  
 

 WHEREAS, based on the staff report attached hereto, the damage to the siding must be repaired 

replaced, or mitigated immediately to prevent a catastrophic building loss; and,  
 

 WHEREAS, to protect the health and safety of the public and Town employees, the Town must 

take swift action to immediately repair the damage to the Police Department Building. 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF PARADISE as follows: 
 

Section 1.    The above statements are true and correct. 
 

Section 2.    The above facts constitute an emergency situation. 
 

Section 3.   Based upon California Public Contract Code sections 20168 and 22050 and the 

above facts, the Council finds that competitive solicitation for bids to repair the building would result in 

delaying the repairs to the building. Any delays further increase the likelihood of the emergency being 

exacerbated by seasonal rainfall. Such rainfall could cause a catastrophic building loss or more costly 

repairs. 
 

Section 4.   The Town Manager is authorized to execute contracts, make purchases with 

contractors and suppliers to repair the Paradise Police Department south and west exterior siding in 

accordance with the Town’s guidelines and to take whatever actions are necessary to implement this 

resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Paradise Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of 

Butte, State of California, on this 8th day of September, 2015, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:   

NOT VOTING:            

       _______________________________                                                                     

           GREG BOLIN, Mayor   
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

    
________________________________                 ________________________________                      

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk   DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney  

 
164



165



166



 

 

 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: September 8, 2015 

 
Agenda No. 7(e) 

 
ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT:   Skyway Guardrail Emergency Repairs 

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  
1. Adopt the attached Resolution No. __________, ”A Resolution of the Town Council of 

the Town of Paradise Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing Repair or Replacement 
of the Guardrail on Skyway Without Observance of Public Bidding Requirements”; and 
 

2. Award Contract 15-15 Skyway Guardrail Repair to Santos Excavating in the amount of 
their bid of $24,842.00 and authorize the Town Manager and Town Attorney to execute.   

 
Background:  
 
On August 15, 2015, a vehicle collided with a Town of Paradise guardrail located on the north 
side of Skyway, about 0.2 miles south of Pine Haven Drive. This collision resulted in substantial 
damage to the guardrail, see attached photographs in Exhibit A.  
 
The purpose of the guardrail is to protect life, health and/or property in the event of a roadway 
departure collision. Following the collision on August 15, 2015, the damaged portion of the 
guard rail and end-treatment has been rendered unsalvageable and requires immediate 
replacement.  
 
Analysis:  
 
The subject guard rail replacement has been deemed an emergency to immediately repair and 
restore. This mitigation will ensure in the event of a second collision in the same location that 
damages and injuries are minimized to the extent practicable. In the interim, traffic cones and 
barricades have been placed to further warn motorists of the current hazard.  
 
Staff has informally solicited quotations and recommends Council award Contract 15-15 to 
Santos Excavating, Inc. in the amount of their bid $24,842.00, see attached quotation in Exhibit 
B. This contract includes the replacement of 60 feet of metal beam guard rail and traffic control. 
The construction cost accounts for the necessity to hand-dig all post foundations due to the 
underground fiber optic trunk serving the Town of Paradise.  
 
Staff is requesting Council formally declare these repairs an emergency to forgo the full 
competitive bidding procedures. This declaration will allow repairs to be made in the most 
expedient manner to protect life, health and property for adjacent property owners and 
motorists. Santos Excavating is prepared to begin work following contract award. 
 
Staff will continue to provide updates on the subject item until full remediation on the emergency 
is complete. 
 

 

167



 

 

 

2 

 

Financial Impact:  
 
The Town of Paradise is coordinating coverage and reimbursement with the responsible party’s 
insurance carrier. Undertaking these repairs cannot wait for the insurance process to conclude. 
It is expected the $24,842 in repair costs will be reimbursed through an appropriate method 
while coordinating with the Town Attorney and the Town’s insurance. 

168



TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING REPAIR OR  

REPLACEMENT OF THE GUARDRAIL ON SKYWAY WITHOUT  

OBSERVANCE OF PUBLIC BIDDING REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on August 15, 2015, a vehicle collided with a Town of Paradise guardrail located 

on the north side of Skyway, which resulted in substantial damage to the guardrail; and  
 

 WHEREAS, based on the staff report attached hereto, the damage to the guardrail must be 

repaired or replaced immediately to prevent vehicles from crashing and to provide a safe road for 

Paradise citizens; and,  
 

 WHEREAS, to protect the health and safety of the public, the Town must take swift action to 

immediately repair the damage to the guardrail on Skyway. 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF PARADISE as follows: 
 

Section 1.    The above statements are true and correct. 
 

Section 2.    The above facts constitute an emergency situation. 
 

Section 3.   Based upon California Public Contract Code sections 20168 and 22050 and the 

above facts, the Council finds that competitive solicitation for bids to repair the guardrail would result in 

delaying the repairs to the guardrail.  In addition, the public interest and necessity demand the immediate 

expenditure of public money to safeguard life, health and property by hiring contractors to repair the 

damage to the guardrail without observance of the requirements of the Public Contract Code relating to 

public works contracts, bids and notices.   
 

Section 4.   The Town Manager is authorized to execute contracts with contractors to repair the 

guardrail located 0.2 miles south of Pine Haven Drive on Skyway in accordance with the Town’s 

guidelines and to take whatever actions are necessary to implement this resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Paradise Town Council of the Town of Paradise, County of 

Butte, State of California, on this 8th day of September, 2015, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:   

NOT VOTING:            

       _______________________________                                                                     

           GREG BOLIN, Mayor   
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

    
________________________________                 ________________________________                      

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk   DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney  

 169



Exhibit A

170



Exhibit B

171



E
xh

ib
it 

B

172



 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

5555 Skyway 
Paradise, CA 95969 

(530) 872-6291 
 

 
 
September 8, 2015 
 
 
 
The Honorable Doug LaMalfa 
U.S. House of Representatives 
322 Cannon House Office Building 
Washington, DC  20515 
 
Dear Representative LaMalfa:  
 
RE: Co-sponsor HR 2775 – The Remote Transactions Parity Act 
 
On behalf of the Town of Paradise I am writing to request your support and co-sponsorship of HR 2775 – The 
Remote Transactions Parity Act.  This bipartisan legislation would not impose a new tax but would enable state 
and local governments to compel retailers to collect and remit sales taxes on online sales, which are already owed 
to them under current law. The current tax structure for online sales creates vast disparities between brick and 
mortar businesses and online retailers.  In California, the loss of revenue to support needed public services has 
been estimated by the National League of Cities to be over $4 billion per year.   
 
These are revenues that the Town of Paradise relies upon to support vital public safety and social programs.  
Revenues lost due to remote sales has forced many local governments to compensate by raising other taxes, 
business license and other fees.  Collectively these increased local tax burdens disproportionately affect the 
economically disadvantaged.    
 
Higher local tax rates also increase the competitive disadvantage for local retailers and undercut their ability to 
pay property tax, create local jobs and contribute to the community.  Meanwhile without greater tax parity, the 
economic advantage now afforded to a favored class of retailers continues to grow. 
 
For all of these reasons, we strongly urge you to co-sponsor HR 2775.  Thank you for your consideration of this 
important request.  I look forward to working with you to help pass this important legislation.    
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Greg Bolin 
Mayor 
 

173



174


	Top
	(1) 09/08/15 1e Thank you PIP Volunteers - Chamber of Commerce
	3a. 09/08/15 3a Approve Minutes 8/4 &amp; 8/11
	3a tc_sm_pid_080415.docx
	3a tc_min_081115.docx

	3b. 09/08/15 3b Cash Disbursements Report
	3b Cash Disbursements 090815.pdf

	3c. 09/08/15 3c Accept $1000 Cash Donation to Fire Department
	3c Cash Donation to FD.doc

	3d. 09/08/15 3d Police Vehicle Equipment Purchase and Installation
	3d Agenda Summary Patrol Veh Equipment.doc
	3d Vehicle Equipment Bid Results.pdf

	3e. 09/08/15 3e Fire Engine Exhaust Removal Project Award
	3e Staff Report - Fire Exhaust Removal Award.doc
	3e fire exhaust bid results.pdf
	3e 1512 - Proposed Agreement for AirVac Review.pdf

	3f. 09/08/15 3f Agt with Lauren Gill for Town Manager Services
	3f Agenda Summary TM SERVICES.doc
	3f Gill Agreement.docx
	3f Town Manager Salary Schedule FY15 16 Exhibit A.pdf
	3f  Gill-TM benefits 8 31 15.docx

	3g. 09/08/15 3g Quarterly Investment Report
	3g Agenda Summary - 4th Q 2015 Investment Report 090815.doc
	3g June 30, 2015.pdf
	3g Graph 1 - 063015.pdf
	3g Graph 3 - 063015.pdf

	3h. 09/08/15 3h Intro Ord No 557  Expedited Residential Rooftop Solar Systems
	3h Agenda Summary Solar Council.docx
	3h Solar Ordinance.docx
	3h Res. Solar PV Submittal Checklist.pdf
	3h solar NOE.pdf

	3i. 09/08/15 3i 3Core Agreement
	3i Agenda Summary 3Core_Partnership_Inv.doc
	3i 3Core_Partnership_AgreementandAttachments.pdf

	3j. 09/08/15 3j Crime Policy Resolution
	3j Agenda Summary - crime policy in lieu of bond 090815.doc
	3j Resolution-Bonding 090815.doc

	5a. 09/08/15 5a CDBG - Approve the CAPER 
	5a CAPER Agenda FY14-15.doc
	5a CAPER 2014-15_Draft.docx

	7a. 09/08/15 7a Resolution No 15-__, Consent to TBID
	7a BCTBID_Agenda_Summary.doc
	7a TBID Resolution 090815.docx

	7b. 09/08/15 7b Pearson Rd Pavement Rehabilitation Award (PID Funded)
	7b Agenda Summary - Award Contract.doc
	7b Exhibit A - PID Letter of Understanding.pdf

	7c. 09/08/15 7c Clark Rd Safety Enhancements Award
	7c Agenda Summary - Award Contract Franklin.doc
	7c Attachment A - TOP-Franklin Contract Agreement.pdf

	7d. 09/08/15 7d Paradise Police Department Emergency Siding Repairs
	7d Staff Report - PPD Siding Repair (1).doc
	7d Resolution - Siding Repairs.doc
	7d Exhibit A - Photos.pdf

	7e. 09/08/15 7e Lower Skyway Emergency Guardrail Repairs
	7e Agenda Summary - Guardrail Repair.doc
	7e Resolution - Guardrail Repair.doc
	7e Exhibit A - Damage Photos.pdf
	7e Exhibit B - Repair Estimate - Santos Excavating2.pdf

	8a. 09/08/15 8a Cleanup after Traffic Collisions (LOTTER)
	8b. 09/08/15 8b Letter of Support for H.R. 2775 Remote Transaction Parity Tax
	8a Internet_Sales_Tax_letter_8.19.15.docx

	10a. 09/08/15 10a CS - Town v Braun
	10e. 09/08/15 10e CS Potential Litigation 
	Bottom

